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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$29,846,000, representing a year-on-year increase
of 21.6%. As the revenue from investment properties and rental
income increased HK$17,751,000 as well as exchange gain of
HK$8,775,000 arising from the appreciation of the Renminbi, the
Group recorded operating profit of HK$27,630,000, reversing the
loss recorded last year.

HOTEL BUSINESS

Coffetel Guilin Plaza (“Guilin Plaza”) underwent renovation work from
March to October in 2017, leading to significant decrease of 77.9%
to HK$4,423,000 in annual operating income. In addition, due to the
business reorganization of Guilin Plaza, reduction in the number of
hotel rooms, increase in room for rental properties, demand for labor
decreased and severance payment of HK$3,555,000 was incurred,
resulting in a year-on-year increase of 230% to HK$17,133,000 in
the operating loss of Guilin Plaza.

Guilin Plaza reopened in November 2017 and the business
operation gradually returned to normal. With more efficient use of
room resources, decrease in operating costs and increase in rental
income, the operating performance of the hotel is expected to
improve.

In order to expand the diversified business related to the hotel
industry, the Group formed China Select Small Hotel Union Limited
(a 51%-owned joint venture of the Group) with T-Box Union
(China) Financial Holdings Investments Limited and T-Box Union
Investments Limited on 29 September 2017, in an effort to provide
integrated service in the homestay inn and small hotel industry,
including offering quickly-constructed T-BOX® mobile homes with
zero-sewage discharge environmental-friendly system as well as
homestay inn sales management software and financing solutions.
On 14 December 2017, China Select Small Hotel Union Limited
and China New Town Development Company Limited entered into
strategic cooperation framework agreement for joint development of
the homestay inn tourist services industry fund.
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PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

The Group’s overall rental income in 2017 was HK$6,373,000,
representing an increase of 39.6% as compared to the same period
last year. As the ancillary facilities enhancement work at Zhongkong
Tower in Foshan was completed, the overall occupancy rate of
Zhongkong Tower increased to 53.84% and the full-year rental
income amounted to HK$3,085,000, representing a significant
increase of 292% as compared to the same period of last year.
The full-year rental income of Shantou Commercial Plaza amounted
to HK$1,558,000, which was similar to last year. As most of the
properties of Huizhou International Commerce Building were sold in
the second half of the year, annual rental income decreased 21.67%
to HK$359,000 from last year.

In terms of property sales, during the year, the Group completed the
disposal of 29 units of Huizhou International Commerce Building, 5
units of Shantou Commercial Plaza and unit A on the ground floor
in Kai Yip Factory Building, San Po Kong, Hong Kong, cashing out
totally HK$49,743,000 and generating total gains of HK$20,671,000.

As disclosed by the Company on 16 November 2017, Guangdong
Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sino Rock Tyco”), a
subsidiary of the Company and a 80%-owned joint venture of the
Group, would invest in the development and construction of the
high-end industrial parks project for electric vehicle and hydrogen
powered fuel cell vehicle production operated in Danzao Town,
Nanhai District, Foshan City. The construction of the industrial parks
is expected to complete in 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement

WELLNESS ELDERLY CARE BUSINESS

Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology Ltd.
(“Guangdong Yibaijian”), a 70%-owned joint venture company of
the Group, has completed the whole construction work and passed
the comprehensive system test of smart platform for management
of integrated elderly care services in Nanhai District (“Smart Elderly
Care Services Platform”). It has officially conducted pilot operation
in Dali Town and Shishan Town, Nanhai District on 12 July 2017.
The platform has operated smoothly so far and was planned to
gradually expand to other towns in Nanhai District. On December
4, 2017, Guangdong Yibaijian won the tender of the second phase
construction of the Smart Elderly Care Services Platform for further
optimization of the Platform and development of various value-
added services in healthy elderly care management so as to increase
channels of operating income. Smart Elderly Care Services Platform
is a point of entry for the Group into the wellness elderly care
industry. As the elderly care project is at the initial investment and
construction stage, it has yet to generate any profits or gains for the
Group.

In order to focus resources on the development of wellness elderly
care industry, the Group has shelved plans to invest in maternal and
child health care development projects

PROFIT ON INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited, a 32.636%-owned joint
venture of the Group, implemented technological transformation
of its boilers at the beginning of last year. As a result, a temporary
suspension of the operation of the boilers affected power generation
and gas supply. As there is no such technological transformation
is implemented this year, both sales volume of power and steam
increased as compared to last year. Despite increased costs due
to the increase in coal prices, operating performance in 2017
improved with an operating profit of HK$180,351,000, contributing
HK$58,859,000 to the Group, representing an increase of 13% as
compared to last year.
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As at 31 December 2017, Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.,
a 25%-owned associate of the Group, recorded net operating profit
of HK$66,537,000, contributing a profit of HK$16,635,000 to the
Group, representing an increase of 6.2% as compared to last year.

Global Digital Cybersecurity Authority Co., Ltd. (formerly Guangdong
Certificate Authority Company Limited), a 5%-owned joint venture
of the Group, completed the listing of its shares on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations System (New Third Board) on 11
August 2017 and generated a profit of HK$777,000 for the equity
held by the Group.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total assets of
HK$2,277,412,000 (31 December 2016: HK$1,316,578,000),
bank loans and other long-term liabilities of HK$945,849,000
(31 December 2016: HK$257,475,000), net assets of
HK$1,177,859,000 (31 December 2016: HK$931,287,000), gearing
ratio (being bank loans and long-term borrowings divided by total
assets) of 41.5% (31 December 2016: 19.6%) and equity attributable
to owners of the Company per share of HK59.58 cents (31
December 2016: HK54.39 cents).

The Group had net current assets of HK$244,777,000 (31 December
2016: HK$60,051,000), current ratio (being current assets divided
by current liabilities) of approximately 1.32 times (31 December
2016: 1.39 times) and bank savings cash and cash equivalents of
HK$886,861,000 (31 December 2016: HK$151,097,000), which is
sufficient for the capital requirements of future operation and new
projects or business development of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, properties of the Group
for own use and investment and bank deposit with carrying value
of approximately HK$387,660,000 were pledged to banks as the
security for the bank borrowings granted to the Group (31 December
2016: properties of the Group for own use and investment with
carrying value of approximately HK$301,578,000 were pledged to
banks).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operating income and costs are denominated
in RMB. In the business operation of the Group, foreign exchange
fluctuation of income and costs would be mutually offset. However,
as the Hong Kong-based Group has invested substantial borrowings
into domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries in the Mainland whilst
owning substantial RMB monetary assets. However, the Group had
invested registered capital of US$70,000,000 into Sino Rock Tyco
by the end of this year for the construction of the industrial parks
project. As Sino Rock Tyco has not exchanged the US$70,000,000
into RMB, exchange loss or gain would be generated from
appreciation or depreciation of RMB before exchange. It is expected
that a decrease or an increase of about HK$17,374,000 in the
profit of the year would be resulted if the exchange rate of RMB
to HK dollars appreciates or depreciates by 5%. Reversely, after
exchanging the US$70,000,000 into RMB, it is expected that an
increase or a decrease of about HK$9,967,000 in the profit of the
year would be resulted if the exchange rate of RMB to HK dollars
appreciates or depreciates by 5%. For the past few years, RMB
constantly showed an upward trend and only gradually became
stable in the second half of 2008 while still maintaining an upward
momentum. However, the exchange rate of RMB started to adjust
downwards repeatedly in recent years while began to rebound and
recorded an exchange gain of HK$8,775,000 this year. Therefore,
the Board believes that the magnitude of the downward adjustment
of RMB will be limited in the medium and short term and substantial
depreciation or appreciation is unlikely in the future. It is expected
that RMB will be stable in the long term in the future and will not
significantly pose adverse foreign exchange risk to the Group in the
long run. Accordingly, at the moment, it is not necessary for the
Group to hedge against foreign exchange risk.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 5 Jit 45 fR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4%

EERA

HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HI1t - A%£H
ZEBRREENERBITHERZEEBELNS
#:323,697,000c E M T IR1T ERAEE
ERITERZ2ERAR - (Z2—RF+A
=t—H:AEEzERREEMEZERT
BE497%8%301,578,0007C B B FR1T) ©

S BE = B

REBEEHRDMARBITAENARENE
BIAKAR - TEAN &R B B 5675 2 B P S U A B R
MERFEBFEGHEEER - T/ AEELL
BEARBEMEBEANZENRBARRNT KE
FEREF ARREETHEREAREEE
BE -AMEERSFECRAEREHEAT
TTEETAMRA EREXRIER AR
FERBERB7TTEETLRAARYE 1
FRHBERSERNEARBEABERMEEN
THIRIE H BB W B AR ELBEAH
B2 E5% Bl & 5 8 AN F [ 28 F B ek
In#) & #17,374,00000 R 2 7T FEETT
Has A ARKEE Bhers AREAE
R ER S RIE R Wk BB Bt ARK
HABAENRESY MSFERFERF
8 H0 8 IR 5L 40 75 59,967,000 © 47 81 1B 2= £X
FOARBHER LABYE EE_TT/\F
THFADTHBTE DFEERLE TR
MFAREANRBEREAZTY®K BESFEH
RHIR T 98 BR1FIE K e B 8,775,000
T HMEZFERAARESY NHBEREHAE
THRIEEER RARANBERBEIAE 2
gAK RAREERAFETR To81E
EREEXERTFINERR - Bt - AEE
RSB EMAINEREIELH ANFE-



OUTLOOK

During transformation and upgrade in the past few years, the
Group has basically confirmed its development focus and direction
by continuous exploration and survey, steady investment, and
gaining of industry experience. In addition to keep advancing the
traditional businesses of real estate, hotels and industrial sectors
for guaranteeing stable recurring revenue, the Group will seize
opportunities for market development in finance, technology and
wellness elderly care sectors in coming years. In terms of the finance
sector, the Group has established a wholly-owned subsidiary Canton
Risen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd* (ERERRIMEREHFRAF))
leveraged on its accumulated experience in the financial leasing
industry in order to further develop the financial leasing business; In
terms of the technology sector, taking advantage of the opportunity
of the Nanhai District new smart city construction plan, the Group
actively research on and develop the Big Data industry projects; In
terms of the wellness elderly care sector, the Group shall continue
to develop towards constructing the 3-folded elderly care system of
Nanhai District organization, community and domestics based on the
foundation of the Smart Elderly Care Services Platform. Through the
above development plans, it shall expand the Group’s business and
gradually achieve the goal of improving returns for shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

China Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance and is committed to maintaining
the high standard of corporate governance which is reviewed and
strengthened on a continued basis. The board of directors (the
“Board”) and the management of the Company maintains and
enhances the policies and practices of the Company in a timely,
transparent, effective and responsible manner, so as to maintain
good, solid and reasonable corporate governance structure. The
Board believes that the Company and shareholders as a whole can
derive maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as its own code on
corporate governance.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied
with all code provisions under the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the Board
and three committees under the Board, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. The Board
stipulates the terms of reference of all committees in writing and
specifies clearly the power and responsibilities of the committees.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors, comprising five
executive directors who have extensive business experience, and
three independent non-executive directors who possess appropriate
professional qualifications. Throughout the year 2017 and up to the
date of this report, the composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping

Every director has sufficient time and attention to deal with the
affairs of the Group. Each director discloses to the Company for
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments every year. The
Board considers the composition of executive and non-executive
directors is rational and appropriate and provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors provide the Group with
diversified experience and expertise. Their suggestions, opinions
and participation in the meetings of the Board and each committee
bring independent opinions, suggestions and judgements on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, development, operations,
performance, risk control and conflicts of interest, to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account.
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Corporate Governance Report

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to
time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any
contractual or other terms on which any director may be appointed
or engaged, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

Individual information and responsibilities of all directors are
contained in this annual report on pages 31 to 34.

There are no business, financial, family and other relevant interests
among directors.

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements and
matters, monitoring the performance of senior management and
is responsible for corporate governance with a view to increasing
shareholders’ value. Led by the managing director, the management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans developed
by the Board. The Board authorizes the management to manage the
day-to-day business operations of the Group. Each committee under
the Board has its own specified terms of reference which clearly
define their powers and responsibilities.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved to the
Board for its decision and has separately identified those functions
reserved to the Board. The Board will review those arrangements on
a regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of
the Company.
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The Board also performs the obligations regarding corporate
governance, including:

1.  develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report) to the Listing Rules.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each year
(approximately once each quarter) and will convene meetings
when necessary. When a regular board meeting is convened, the
Board papers will be sent to directors for review before the meeting
pursuant to the deadline as required by the Listing Rules and the
code provisions so that directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities.
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All members of the Board have actively participated in the

EFEENEERB2EARANESE SR

Company’s Board meetings to discuss the overall strategy and A EENZEREEEK - SR
business of the Group. The Board convened nine meetings in 2017 ZT—+F RN EH LESHFEBR
and the attendance of directors is as follows: N
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EEEB BT RE o FE &
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman) IS AE (£E) 9/9 100%
Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director) MRS (EFFAEAEHE) 9/9 100%
Mr. You Guang Wu (Director) HERLEE (EF) 9/9 100%
Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director) — E 5T (E FSIAA4EHE ) 9/9 100%
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director) T MEL (EFFFBEE) 9/9 100%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIHNITESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B {8 5t 4 9/9 100%
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BREERK & 4 9/9 100%
Mr. Deng Hong Ping BoRF A E 9/9 100%

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference to their
functions and responsibilities and the results of the Company in
accordance with the remuneration and performance assessment
programme of directors and senior management which was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 25 May 2017. Any director is not allowed
to participate in determining his/her own remuneration. The
remuneration received by directors from the Group during the year is
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure for directors and upon reasonable request, the directors
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR

The chairman and the managing director have different roles. The
chairman is responsible for the operation of the Board and the
managing director is responsible for managing the operations of
the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to ensure a
balanced distribution of power and authority so that they will not
concentrate on a single individual.

In 2017, the chairman was Mr. He Xiangming and the managing
director was Mr. Lin Pingwu. The deputy managing directors were
Mr. Huang Zhihe and Ms. Wang Xin.

The chairman of the Board is principally responsible for leading
the Board and ensures the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman shall ensure the Board operates effectively
and performs its proper duties and discusses all important and
proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is responsible for
convening board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each board meeting, and ensuring that directors are
provided sufficient information on current matters in a timely manner.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and procedure.

The managing director is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so
as to realize the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
the managing director is also responsible for coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff and
encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and

effective operation of the Company’s operations and systems.
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TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors are provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company Secretary and representative of auditor update directors
on the latest development and changes regarding the Listing Rules,
accounting standards and other relevant regulatory requirements
from time to time.

In addition, the directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and position to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the directors, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

During the year under review, all directors of the Company
participated in continuous professional development to update their
knowledge and skills by reading materials relevant to the directors’
duties and responsibilities and/or their relevant professional and
by attending the training programs arranged by the Company. In
addition, Mr. Chan Kwok Wai also had attended talks and seminars
organised by different professional institutions in relation to the
knowledge of the Listing Rules and directors’ responsibility etc.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. After making specific
enquiries, all directors have confirmed that, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017, they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive BTHZZEE€HR=2%F 7 IEH
directors with extensive experience in accounting or legal aspects.
The audit committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the financial
statements, annual reports and accounts and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, providing advice
to the Board, and making recommendations on the appointment
and remuneration of the auditor of the Company and any matters
related to the termination of appointment. Mr. Chan Kwok Wai is the
chairman of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting the

SR E IR
Corporate Governance Report

BEREES

FHEEHIERTEAR

BREEERERERS

meeting results and recommendations of the audit committee to the

Board after each meeting.

In 2017, the audit committee convened two meetings. Members and R _-Z—+F EZLZES

REREEBRMT

TESFAK ®
BoBERERE
EXZAERHNARANYMHRER FER
EhEENRAREEMABEERRYRE
EZeRHER RARAZBENEE  HM
REMBEEIIZEEHEESROZE K
MER BERER
ERRANEZTEREERLZBENERE

PR &

their attendance are as follows:
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Members REER BITIRE i FE &
Chan Kwok Wai (Chairman of RER (FEZE2FE)
the audit committee) 2/2 100%
Chen Da Cheng BRZE R 2/2 100%
Deng Hong Ping B m T 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year included

ERZESEFENMMHN IIERERN

reviewing the 2016 audited financial statements and the annual Z— A NFELEXNBRELFEELERS

results announcement, reviewing the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2017,
considering the accounting standards adopted, reviewing the
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function,
reviewing the management letter about audit work of the auditor

submitted to the management and the response of the management  EXEZEIF -

and the basis of opinion made by the auditor in their report, etc.

BEHEE_Z-tEFRA=ZTHLEREAN
THRELTHEERE EEMERANS
FHERI - FBM TS E R B
Rt BEARRAREZINENERIE T
B 1 A 12 52 B 1 B WO AR B UL A B K 1 R
EEENE ZHMEERSEMENER

EIENMABEE

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED i[5 B 3% 35 3 47 bR 23 %]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

17



18

e SR a

Corporate Governance Report

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors. The remuneration
committee is principally responsible for reviewing and approving
remuneration plans for directors and senior management, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
executive directors and senior management, including benefits,
pension rights and payment of compensation. Mr. Chen Da Cheng
is the chairman of the remuneration committee and is responsible

FHMEES

FNEE SR =R BUNRNTEZTIMEH
TEFEAK FHEESTZARFMRILE
ESLEREBEAENFH IR REFE
RREATEEFRRAEEABNTFMGE
BREME RSN REEE S - BREKE

for reporting the meeting results and recommendations of the

remuneration committee to the Board after each meeting.

EERFTHEZEENER BENEBRER
BRREFEREFHZEEW
BER-

SEAERNE

In 2017, the remuneration committee convened two meetings. » —tF FHEETERITMAZH
Members and their attendance are as follows: X HEBERAT:
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE,
Name of Members REER HITRE =
Chen Da Cheng (Chairman of the BREX (FTWNZESE/E)
remuneration committee) 2/2 100%
Chan Kwok Wai PR B {2 2/2 100%
Deng Hong Ping B R 2/2 100%
He Xiangming fa] () AR 2/2 100%
Lin Pingwu MR 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during the year
included reviewing the emoluments and incentive scheme of the
Group, determining the emoluments of the directors and senior
management and considering the incentive payment and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration committee also

ensures that no director or senior management member determines

his/her own remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the AEENHFHEFEIAETL (BEESE)NE
remuneration based on the responsibilities, qualifications and & BERIERRMETHEE - LN &K
working performance of staff (including directors). In addition, the HEEBER -_ZE—=FMNA -+ BEMKT A
Group adopted the share option scheme for a term of 10 years Hi+EMBREE BEMERET2 - &
on 26 April 2013. Since adoption of the share option scheme, the & B8 B % L (T ] BE A% 4

Group has not granted any share options.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZ8S

The nomination committee comprises three independent non- RELZEEEH=EBIIERNTEENRELH
executive directors and two executive directors. The nomination fTZEMMK - IEREZECBERTEEZENE
committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and & ABRMARK - WHAER AR S A A BAH
composition of the Board and making recommendations on any ¥FHEmMKEHEESIELNEHIRLEES-
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s REZZECHEEAMNER £ B LY
corporate strategy. It shall consider the suitability of a candidate AAREFEBIRENEZEELTEEHEEA
to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification, & WiF# F 3R AIE3 A3 IE LI
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and  FE B IFNITESHB M -

assess the independence of independent non-executive directors

under the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In 2017, the nomination committee convened one meeting and M-ZT—+F RE{LTESLRT—AEH
members and their attendance are as follows: KERHBEERNAT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE,
Name of Members RE AR BITIREY o FE =
He Xiangming (Chairman of the MRRA(EEZ82F/F)
nomination committee) 1/1 100%
Lin Pingwu AR 1/1 100%
Chan Kwok Wai BRED(E 1/1 100%
Chen Da Cheng BREX 1/1 100%
Deng Hong Ping B R 1/1 100%

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED i[5 B 3% 35 3 47 bR 23 %] 1 9
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The work carried out by the nomination committee during the
year included reviewing the Board structure of the Company,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors,
considering and reviewing the Board diversity policy and making
recommendations to the Board.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company have
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
presented annual confirmations of independence issued pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company. The nomination
committee has assessed their independence and confirms that all
independent non-executive directors are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. The term of office of Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
and Mr. Chen Da Cheng is for two years until 21 September 2018.
The term of office of Mr. Deng Hong Ping is for two years until 5 April
2020. They are subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
requirements of the bye-laws of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. With a view to maintaining competitive advantage, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element. Therefore, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in 20183. The policy set out that the nomination committee of
the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board,
makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
directors of the Company, oversees the conduct of the annual review
of the effectiveness of the Board in order to achieve the objective
of Board diversity. In addition, mechanisms including supervising,
reporting and policy reviewing etc. ensure that the Board diversity
policy will be implemented effectively.

The nomination committee has reviewed from time to time the
diversity of the Board of the Company to ensure that the policy
will be implemented effectively and considered that there is no
immediate need for setting up the measurable objectives.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 5 Jit 45 fR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4%

REZBESEFEANMBNITIERFERNA
RANEBEFERB FRBUIFATESRH
BYIMERITEFESTERR LAES
SRMEZE-

RRABIZBUIERTEEEHA LTRAN
EK - MAR B HRBE E TR R E3. 13153
EHBLHEAFERAE - REZE O
BENB LY WHERFBBIIFENTES
HEEMBAARATHBILA L BREREL
ERREXRECENARAREE_S—\F
NAZ+—HBIE MBEFEENTEHAM
FE-_ZT-_ZTHFNARB -FHAETARQ
AN EERERTRERETHHRE-

EEEILEE

ARATHEERAREEZ TLETEXEN
HE VHREEFTEEENS T RERR
FEBNEELR-AUEARAR-FT—=
FRAEZFSZTERR -ERRIIAER
REZBEHEHLFHESSEAK HEBA
BUREIMAESTERETETEANMESF
EEHARNTH KMERESTEXKEZT
EMBER YREER BRERBRELEFH
B UREFS L ITCHRER R HIT

REZBECOHARAEFTSEZ T THE
Hige ARREBRRERBILAT KRR
EHRFEUFERR



o SR a

Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the audit committee and the senior
management of the Company. The Board determines the nature
and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
design, implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set up and
maintained a suitable and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted Corporate Risk Management
Policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the senior management
identifies risks that would affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners
are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to
assist the Board and the audit committee in ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify deficiencies in the design and implementation of risk
management and internal controls and recommend proposal for
improvement. Significant risk management and internal control
deficiencies will be reported to the audit committee and the Board

on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the audit committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board
had performed annual review on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s review on risk
management and internal control systems; result of internal audit
work; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
Safe Harbours as provided in the Securities Future Ordinance. The
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, if the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Lo Tai On, who is engaged and
appointed by the Company from an external secretarial services
provider. The primary contact persons with the Company Secretary
of the Company are Mr. He Xiangming (Executive Director and
Chairman), Mr. You Guang Wu (Executive Director) and Ms. Chong
Ching Mui (Assistant to Chairman). During the year, the Company
Secretary of the Company duly complied with the relevant training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing financial
statements of the Group.

The financial department of the Company is managed by a qualified
accountant. With the assistance of the financial department, the
Board will ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the audit fee was
approximately HK$1,200,000 and the non-audit services fee was
approximately HK$106,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by HLM CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 49 to 62.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of good communication
with shareholders and investors, and recognizes the value of
providing current and relevant information to shareholders and
investors. The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring that
both shareholders and investors can obtain the complete, identical
and current information of the Company in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained communication with shareholders
through the annual general meeting or other general meetings and
encourages them to participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions
and the voting form. Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend
the annual general meeting and special general meetings provided
that their shares must be registered in the register of members.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting can
fill in the proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting
and return the same to the Company so as to appoint their
representatives or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

At the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2017, all directors
were present to answer questions raised by shareholders and
separate resolution in respect of each separate issue was proposed
for shareholders to vote thereon. The Company appointed branch
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineers and to ensure
votes cast are properly counted and recorded, and announced the
results of the poll on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called and propose any matter
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company. The
Requisitionists may deposit the written requisition for special general
meeting (which shall specify the full name of the Requisitionists,
the business and proposal to be considered at the general meeting
of the Company, and shall be signed by the Requisitionists) to the
principal place of business of the Company for the attention of
the Board. If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting in specified days as
provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules,
the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

In accordance with Bye-law 88 of the Company, no person other
than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the directors for election, be eligible for election as a director at any
general meeting unless not less than seven (7) days before the date
appointed for the general meeting there shall have been lodged at
the office or at the head office notice in writing signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected
provided that the period for lodgment of the aforesaid notice shall
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. For
further information, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders
to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” published on the
Company’s website at http://chinainvestments.oceanwir.com.

IR R AE A

BRRERBMBRRBIBIAREZEF

FAETORARBAGREAR (BAERKRA
BRRERAELRER) T Z KRR (MEE
AN AR BRBERENARERREERAR
ARRAG LEENEE -BHRZAKE
FABREIAENEEER (EHRAIAE
RIEEA 2R EFABARARARBRK
ELRTEBCFERRER VEMRES

BE)ERXEARA T ELEE  I0HEH
ARPEECUR -HEFSUENELE
EERzARF -+ —AAERBREAR
A RET EMBRRSRTE 2 A A BRARTT
BREFRRE BRREZAAREBETRER]
ZBRE-NN—FREDEETAQ)KRETT -

BREBMARBRESZERF

BIEARNF AT MHAIESSE RIFEZEEH
B2E TRKkRg FRESEIN BELAA
TEERREANREAS L2BEE HKIE
HEXEGEBLERAEENE LIRENRE
(WIS EALD)EZEBRE HARARER
REZATRENER  ZBSANIETEHET
REXEARBFAELLTEBRZ2RAMREE
BMER BN AERBATEEREKS
FEE2ERERANIECETZBEER R
BEREBETEHZARTERZBRERSG R
THERIERRERZ - BEER TTRAELRRD
A48k http://chinainvestments.oceanwir.com

BHZ BERERREESTZRERF] -

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ JBt 45 f 24 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

25



26

SR E IR
Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (“Proposers”), or not less than 100
of such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing
to: (a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Proposers may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Proposers; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
name, address, telephone number and email address etc.) by the
following means:

Address: Unit 501, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax No.: 852-23013878

Email: general@cihl.com.hk
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
36 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year and
discussion on the future business development of the Group
are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 4 to 9 of
this report. In addition, the discussion on the principal risks and
uncertainties which the Group is exposed to the relationships
with the Group’s suppliers, customers and key stakeholders, the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in below paragraphs and the section on
employees under page 39 of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year with financial
key performance indicators is set out in the “Chairman’s statement”
on pages 4 to 8 of this report.

There were no events significantly affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of 31 December 2017 and up to the date of
this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and financial
management risks.

The details of financial risk management policies and practices of the
Group is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The hotel management continuously enhance
relationships with individual and corporate customers, which enjoys
good relationship with suppliers and customers. During the year of
2017, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures
have been adopted in the Group’s managed hotel. Such initiatives
include recycling of used papers, energy saving measures and water
saving practices. An environmental, social and governance report is
set out on pages 41 to 48 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda, mainland
China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this report, we have complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China, Hong Kong and
the Bermuda that have a significant impact on the Group.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 63.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year ended
date. There was a revaluation surplus of HK$1,094,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017. No revaluation surplus nor deficit was
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of such
revaluation are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Particulars regarding the Group’s major properties are set out on
pages 180 to 184 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 67 and note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under
the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$725,199,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Pingwu (Managing Director)

Mr. You Guang Wu (Director)

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy Managing Director)
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy Managing Director)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Chen Da Cheng
Mr. Deng Hong Ping

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Lin Pingwu, Mr. Chen Da Cheng and Mr. Deng Hong Ping shall retire
by rotation from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is two
years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

He Xiangming, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director and
chairman of the Board of the Company on 23 July 2014. Mr. He is
the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. He holds a master
degree in Geography from South China Normal University. He has
extensive experience in business management and environmental
public utilities. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. He was the
chairman of Grandblue Environment Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He is also the chairman of Guilin
Plaza, the chairman and legal representative of Foshan City Nanhai
Canmanage Investments Holdings Limited* (1L TR /EREREE
fR A &]) , Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) Investments Company
Limited* (R 28I #B 5L ORI L EHBRAF), Guangdong Sino Rock
Tyco Construction Co., Ltd* (BERHP EHREHERBERAF) and a
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

*

For identification purpose only
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Lin Pingwu, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director and
the managing director of the Company on 20 January 2016. He
is a member of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company, the chairman of Foshan Zhong Chuang
Property Service Company Limited* (LT R Al ERBEE R QD
7)) and Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology
Lid* (EREARAEERIEBRAAF), the chairman and legal
representative of Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd* (ER &
BAIBEMRE BB AR ) and China Select Small Hotel Union Limited*
(BEREBHTERERSE AR AF)and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin holds a degree in History from
South China Normal University. He has extensive experience in
business management and finance. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Lin worked as B8 M# B Bt BHEHK (Chief of the Planning
and Finance Section of Nanhai Education Office*), manager of a
company which engaged in the education industry, /& & 78 # $8 §E
& (Township Head of Xigiao Town, Nanhai District*), /& &M1&
B (i) B&E (Director of Nanhai Foreign Affairs & Overseas
Chinese Affairs Office (Travel and Tourism Administration)*), F /& &%
Bl ZE K (Deputy Secretary-General of Nanhai District Committee®),
/8 A $I131 A ZE X T (Director of Nanhai Legislative Office*) and &
5% BB S % 7 8l /B & (Deputy Director of Nanhai Finance Office®).

You Guang Wu, aged 53, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 until 6
April 2006 when he was redesignated as vice chairman of the board
and executive director of the Company. On 26 February 2009, Mr.
You was appointed as the chairman of the board and on 23 July
2014 resigned as the chairman of the board. Mr. You is now an
executive director of the Company, managing director of Canton
Risen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd* (BEREXRRIEHSBR A A])
and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. You
is a senior accountant in the PRC. He holds a master degree in
economics. He has accumulated extensive experience in investment,
financing and financial management.
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Huang Zhihe, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 5 August 2013.
Mr. Huang is also the managing director of Foshan City Nanhai
Canmanage Investments Holdings Limited* (#5ILTMEEEXKRER
fR A &]) and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Huang holds a bachelor degree in industrial management and
engineering and a master of business administration from South
China University of Technology. He has extensive experience of
investment and development in real estate and management in hotel
industry.

Wang Xin, aged 46, was appointed as an executive director and
the deputy managing director of the Company on 1 May 2014. Ms.
Wang holds a master degree in economics from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. She has extensive experience in corporate
business operation, strategic financial planning and management,
team building and management innovation. Ms. Wang is the
managing director of Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) Investments
Company Limited* (R 8 EE} (ORI IR EEBBR 2 F), the managing
director and legal representative of Foshan Zhong Chuang Property
Service Company Limited* (B IL TR AW ERBER A7) and
Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology Ltd.* (&
REAEBRABRBEMEAR2AAF)and a director in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Kwok Wai, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Chan holds a bachelor degree in Accounting and Commerce, and is
member of the CPA Australia and a member of Hong Kong Securities
Institute. He has over 30 years of experience in the finance and
accounting industry. Mr. Chan is also currently independent non-
executive director of 4 other listed public companies in Hong Kong,
namely Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, Tern Properties Company
Limited, National Electronics Holdings Limited and Far East
Consortium International Limited.
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Chen Da Cheng, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chen
graduated from the Sun Yat-sen University, PRC. He is a practicing
solicitor in the PRC and the executive director of Guangdong
Lawyers Association. He has over 27 years of experience in legal
services.

Deng Hong Ping, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 6 April 2006 and is a
member of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor
Degree in marine engineering of the Ocean University of China in
Guangdong and graduated in master of economics and legal studies
of Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Deng is a
practicing lawyer in the PRC and he has accumulated extensive
experience in legal sectors, particularly in enterprises mergers and
acquisition and debt reorganization.

Note: The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the above

executive directors who are the senior management of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interest of the Company’s directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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RIB—tF+-A=1+—H REARXARE
EERPEGRD ([FExRBEERM]) %352
GRRENECMALCE HRBHN TR
AT EMBITAERETES %m
RESTAI ([RESFR]) MAME AR
Q%Wﬁi’ﬁ@ﬁ%$E$AﬂﬁﬁEﬁ
HEEE (& RESF M EROIEXVER)
BErt RO RESFOESDT

—

Long positions in the shares of the Company REQATROWER
Approximate
percentage
of total
issued shares
Number of as at
Nature of ordinary 31 December
Name of director Capacity Interest shares held 2017
R=Z—+tF
+t=-ZA=+—H
i HWhEE2WERT
BEEHA 8 EamtE =EREE RGBS
He Xiangming Beneficial owner Personal 1,441,000 0.08%
fa] [ B9 EmEEA A @A
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares or interest in debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO, the persons who were interested in 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company are as follows:

BEXHBEEEN R_FT—LF+ A
TR ARANEFTLARSTHRABRM
ENBREBEES LG RO EXVEFTRED
HAMEGARRA M ZAHARR R HEEM
HEEE (&R ESMARRGIEXVE) 1
Bt AR S EFERIAR (BRRE
EHELRBERDIN A RIGEXRER/NE FHE
BOEmIORR) - REE Z IR IRGIE
BE2{FRAF AL GBI Fr s B LM - HARBIR
ETRIAMEARE NN ERIORE o

FERR

R-ZE—+tF+_A=Z+—HB BREAQA
RRBELE LRGN EI86KTFEZEERR
TRtk HEARRRG KAEERMN5%
A EZEEZBRRET

Approximate

Number percentage
of shares/ of total issued
underlying shares as at

Names shares Notes Capacity 31 December 2017
R-ZE—+F
+t=ZA=+-H
1%, e HiE2WE BT
= B & B B E247) BRB2EDE
EREESEREERR DA 1,426,439,842 1 Corporate interest 83.30%
(Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*)
EREEEREEBRAA NG
Nam Keng Van Investment 121,864,487 2 Beneficial owner 7.12%
Company Limited
MRERERARADA EmMAA
Cui Guo Jian 121,864,487 2 Corporate interest 7.12%
ERE AR
Pu Jian Qing 121,864,487 2 Corporate interest 7.12%
EaDE NG

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes:

1. These 1,426,439,842 shares comprises (i) 1,207,713,527 shares held
by Prize Rich Inc. which was wholly-owned by EREGIZREER
R 2 7] (Guangdong Nanhai Holding Investment Co., Ltd.*); and (ii)
218,726,315 new shares to be allotted and issued by the Company to
Prize Rich Inc. upon the exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
convertible bonds issued by the Company to Prize Rich Inc. pursuant

to an acquisition agreement as part of the consideration.

2. These 121,864,487 shares were held by Nam Keng Van Investment
Company Limited which was wholly-owned by Mr. Cui Guo Jian and

Mr. Pu Jian Qing equally.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register as having an interest in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, there were no connected transactions which need to
be disclosed as connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements. Those related party transactions constituted
exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is for a term
of 10 years from the date of adoption. No option has been granted
since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Group
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants for their
contribution or future contribution to the Group and to strengthen the
many long-term relationships that the participants may have with the
Group.

For details of terms of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
note 30 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, HK$115,000 charitable donations were made within
the Group (2016: Nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest supplier accounted for 16% of the
Group’s purchases and the five largest suppliers accounted for 42%
of the Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted
for 11% of the Group’s turnover and the five largest customers
accounted for 24% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group is approximately 113
(2016: 161). The remuneration of the employees of the Group
is determined on the basis of performance and responsibility of
the employees. The Group provides education allowances to
the employees. The Group also provides internal training to its
employees to enable them to achieve self-improvement and to
enhance their job related skills. The Group also operates a share
option scheme, under which qualified employees may exercise their
options at an agreed price to subscribe for shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the time
being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except
such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes and share option scheme as disclosed
in notes 27 and 30 to the financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 were audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire
and seek for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Investments Holdings Limited

He Xiangming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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The Company always puts great emphasis on environmental
protection, is particularly dedicated to reducing emission of
greenhouse gas and promoting resource utilization efficiency and
waste management, etc., and paying the highest attention to its
hotel business. An environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
task team has been established by Guilin Plaza Hotel to formulate
relevant policies for hotel under the 5R principle (replace, reduce,
reuse, recover and recycle), plan and organize the implementation
of various relevant tasks and constantly put forward administrative
measures, in an effort to save energy and reduce resource
consumption. Dedicated to environmental and resource protection
and thanks to excellent performance, the hotel has passed and
maintained the certification of Chinese Tourist Hotels “Silver Leaf
Green Tourist Hotel” since 2007 up to date.

EXHAUST GAS

— Boilers and other combustion facilities have been installed flue
gas purification devices that have passed the standardized
test of the environmental protection administration, so as to
minimize the emission of harmful gas.

—  Fuel have been changed from using diesel with a lot of nitric
oxide emission to clean using natural gas, so as to reduce
emission of sulfur dioxide and particles.

—  Exhaust gas emission has passed the test of environmental
protection administration, with emission indicators has met the
statutory and regulatory standards.

— All vehicles in the hotel use highly efficient fuel detergents to
reduce fuel consumption and hydrocarbon emissions.

—  During the year, the emissions of nitrogen oxides, cerium oxides
and particulates amounted to 286.6 kg, 1.5 kg and 9.7 kg,
respectively.
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GREENHOUSE GAS

The greenhouse gas emitted by the Company mainly comes from
electric consumption. The hotel also tries our best to reduce electric
consumption and carbon footprint in the following ways.

Electricity consumption

- During the year, the hotel enhanced the solar water
heating function of its solar power system, using clean and
environmentally-friendly renewable energy and further reducing
power consumption.

—  The hotel used more LED semiconductor lamps in its lighting
system during the refurbishment, which reduces 75% of power
consumption under the same lighting effect.

—  The hotel has worked out Regulations on Energy Saving and
Environmental Protection, advocating active adoption of up-
to-date saving techniques and management methods in the
energy-saving management of the hotel, so as to practically
reinforce the capacity of energy management and control, carry
out energy saving and consumption reduction works, reduce
operation cost and protect the environment.

— The hotel adheres to the guideline of “Full Attention and
Participation by all, Constant Persistence and innovation”.
Therefore, we are not only dedicated to educating and training
our employees and strictly enforcing relevant regulations, but
also encouraging employees to put forward feasible advices to
continuously improve our energy saving and control, in a bid to
continuously intensify and develop energy saving of the hotel.

— During the year, the electricity comsumption and greenhouse
gas emissions of the Company totalled 1,489,061 units and
1,257.9 tons respectively.
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ENVIRONMENT AND RESOURCE RERERER

CONSUMPTION

KFEH

Water Consumption

The water consumption of the Company focuses on the hotel
business. In all guest rooms of the hotel, we apply water-saving
pedestal pans which meet the Class-1 standards of water
use efficiency. We guide guests to correctly use the pedestal
pans according to different standards for bowel movement and
urination. We also encourage employees to use water frugally
in daily life. We also install the intelligent inductive water-
saving system in employees’ bathrooms. These measures
can effectively control the intensity and total amount of water
consumption.

During the year, the hotel employed technological
transformation in the refurbishment to recycle a large amount
of condensed water vapour by the cooling tower, thereby
significantly reducing the loss of plume.

Strengthened water consumption regulation at the hotel: Water
leakage detection and water balance testing were conducted
and water tanks were cleaned on a regular basis. Ledgers
were established to conduct measurement and assessment by
installing separate water meters and water-saving faucets so as
to exercise control over water consumption. Water-saving signs
are placed in guest rooms to guide guests as a reminder, and
change of cotton fabric products is made on a per guest basis
instead of the previous daily basis, all aiming to reduce water
consumption and minimize pollution to water resources.

The hotel also enhanced employees’ water-saving awareness
to promote good habits and culture of saving water and
other resources, in hope to convey the concept of resources
conservation and environmental protection to guests.
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—  During the year, the hotel carried out refurbishment and
renovations, and endeavoured to incorporate energy
conservation and environmental protection elements to the
hotel during the design process. Through transformation of
technology and equipment, the hotel reduced unnecessary
actual consumption of resources as compared with the past.
During the refurbishment process, the hotel improved fitting-
out project management by adopting green building materials
such as water-based paints and plates with low binder content.
During and after the implementation of the project, the indoor
air has been kept fresh and in good ventilation conditions
to maintain good indoor air quality. The hotel also reduced
production of refurbishment waste and disposed of the
remaining waste under the 5R principle.

—  During the year, the water consumption in total of the Company
totalled 38,690 m3.

Consumption of Other Resources

— The Company tries to save the use of paper by advocating
“paperless office”. Moreover, we reduce the use of disposable
stationery, print both sides of paper, and deliver waste paper to
the environmental recycling company for disposal.

— The hotel reduces resource consumption by reducing guest
supplies, minimizing packages and preventing the use of
disposable tableware.

The non-hazardous wastes produced during the production and
operation of the hotel are mainly household garbage and kitchen
waste. The hotel has established a garbage house which meets
the standards of the Star Rating and Assessment on China Tourism
Hotels ( (R BUIREEER /5 2 R EID EFTE) ) . All these non-hazardous
wastes are collected and treated by the environment and hygiene
management agencies designated by the government. Kitchen
waste is processed mainly to animal feeds and composts. Therefore,
it is considered as zero emission of harmless waste and the impact
on the surrounding environment is minimized.
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In relation to the Hotel Business nature, Company not use any
packaging material. Except for the abovementioned, Company’s
business activities do not make any significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

In the spirit of a good corporate citizen, the Company actively
participates in various activities with regard to caring community
and environmental protection, tries to be a conscientious enterprise,
offers all-round security to our employees, and makes due
contribution to building a better community.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR

In order to promote employees’ sense of belonging to the Company,
the Company launches various games for employees every year,
including simulated ball game, outdoor activities, etc. In addition,
the Company tries to promote employees’ job skill and sense of
superiority by instruction, activities, skill competition and other
trainings.

The Company has set up the Employee Manual, wherein all articles
and the formulation and release procedures of the Employee Manual
meet relevant legal requirements. The Company has established a
trade union to offer guidance to employees.

The Company treats each employee equally, and recruits,
compensates and promotes employees according to the same
standards irrespective of their ethnology, race, nationality, sex,
religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction, marital status and
other social identities.

As at the end of the year, the Company had a total of 113
employees, among which 54 and 59 of them were male and
female, accounting for 48% and 52% respectively. Specifically,
15 employees were below 30 years old, accounting for 13% of
headcount; 75 employees were between 31 to 50 years old,
accounting for 66%; and 23 employees were above 50 years old,
accounting for 20%.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company is dedicated to providing employees with a safe
working environment, trying our best to prevent work from bringing
any risk to the public, and paying attention to employees’ health. The
orientation training of the hotel employees includes the labor safety
course, so as to promote employees’ safety awareness and self-
protection capacity. We have worked out safe-operation procedures
for each job that may bring about any risk. In addition, we carry out
daily safety supervision and monthly safety check.

In addition, we provide all employees with free professional health
check every year.

TRAINING AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT

The Company invests sufficient resources in employee training and
development, so as to maintain the competitiveness, professional
level and moral standards of employees. All new employees must
receive training of industry knowledge, health and safety and job
skill. Furthermore, guided by Annual Employee Training Program,
we continuously offer expertise and skill training to employees every
year, so that they can possess a high professional quality, maintain
their competitiveness, fulfill their duties and reach the highest service
standards.

In addition, we select and assign employees to pursue advanced
studies at domestic well-known professional academies, with a view
to bringing up professional talents with a broad vision and versed in
industry operation and management.

In 2017, each employee of the hotel received 8-day training of 6
courses on average.
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LABOR REGULATIONS

With regard to labor standards and human right policy, the Company
strictly abides by relevant laws. The internal labor policy formulated
by the Company contains a strict ban on child labor or forced labor.
In each of the previous years, we smoothly passed the annual check
of labor supervision by relevant government authorities.

PRIVACY POLICY

The hotel aims to safeguard the personal data and information
of all stakeholders basis by formulating strict privacy protection
policies and complying with internationally recognized standards to
the greatest extent. The privacy policy of the hotel applies to the
data and information on its guests and other individuals who have
business contacts with the hotel, as well as the management of
such data and information in electronic or written form. The hotel
is committed to the safe personal information collection, personal
data processing, personal information use, personal information
disclosure and daily record management. All business activities are
in compliance with relevant national laws and regulations as well as
internationally recognized privacy protection standards.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The supplier management of the hotel is always an important link
of quality control system. The hotel has worked out strict purchase
control measures, so as to ensure the quality and safety of all
purchased raw materials. All food suppliers must provide inspection
and quarantine certificates issued by the government authorities of
hygiene and disease control. Materials supplied by other suppliers
must also have national quality and safety (QS) certificates. The
hotel has formulated and implemented a strict cargo receipt and
inspection system, ensuring the quality and safety of all materials
(including raw materials) purchased by us.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY

In the opinion of the Company, products represent the core
competitiveness of an enterprise. In order to practically improve
product quality and ensure customers’ rights and interests, we
have taken an active part in the event of “Brand Creation Year”
organized by the local government, formulated and implemented
the standardized management procedures of product quality, and

successfully applied for a brand enterprise.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company carries out a zero-tolerance policy toward any act
of bribery, fraud or money-laundering. Both the Employee Manual
and Financial System formulated by the Company contain control
procedures for preventing bribery, fraud or money-laundering
from occurring. Moreover, the Company has set up a reporting
mechanism, through which employees can report any surreptitious
irregular act.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
For many years, the hotel has been helping local student

groups through cash donation, material donation and employee
participation, so as to meet our commitment to community service.

In addition, the hotel always pays high attention to the impact of our
operation on our community and environment, and tries to minimize
such impact, so as to fulfill our obligation as a member of our
community.
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Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre
2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

Tk BT RO PG 2- 125 I 5% 04 2L P D305 E

HLM CPA LIMITED

Tel &7 : (852) 3103 6980

Fax f#5.: (852) 3104 0170

Certified Public Accountants

E-mail & T : info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
FEBEERERA T

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 63 to 178,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

Key Audit Matter: Valuation of investment properties and
hotel property

BRBETSEE: REMEREENENMEE

Notes 17 & 18 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the valuation of the Group’s hotel property and other
properties, which are classified as property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties as significant to our audit because
the determination of fair value of hotel buildings and investment
properties is based on several key inputs that require significant
management judgements, assumptions, estimations and other
inputs.

The Group has properties with aggregate carrying values of
HK$458,197,000, as at 31 December 2017, of which the hotel
property is approximately HK$115,000,000 and the other properties
are approximately HK$343,197,000. Following a review of the
business, the outlook for the industry and the Group’s operating
plans, management has assessed these carrying values.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group's investment
properties to be HK$232,525,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement including fair market rents,
and no impairment provision is provided. These conclusions are
dependent upon significant management judgement.

FE2REA M BWMRM 1718
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWETNMEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties and hotel property included:

assessing the valuation methodologies used by the external valuer;

assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the business and
industry;

evaluating the independent external valuer’s competence and
capabilities and objectivity; and

considering the appropriateness of the estimated resale values
based on the recent transaction price in the PRC and Hong Kong’s
property industry.

Based on available evidence we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

Key Audit Matter: Revenue recognition

FRE S WEER

Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements

Revenue from hotel operation amounted to HK$4,423,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Revenue from hotel room and
restaurant is recorded when the related service is provided. Hotel
management adjusted on the room rates according to the market
condition.

Rental income from the investment property amounted to
HK$6,373,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. Rental
income under operating lease is recognised on a straight line method
over the relevant lease term.

The revenue from sale of property, which amounted to
HK$15,944,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017, was
recorded when the Group enter into a legally binding contract
and the ownership of the property was transferred to the buyer.
Management set the prices with reference to the recent transaction
price,

Revenue from wellness elderly care business amounted to
HK$3,106,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. Revenue from
wellness elderly care business is recorded when the related service
is provided.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMWETNMEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policy in line with HKFRS; and

- scrutinising journals and sale and purchase contracts related to
revenue to assess the cut-off and reliability of the revenue.

We found that the amount and the timing of the revenue recorded
were supported by the available evidence.

Key Audit Matter: Interests in associates - Nanhai
Changhai Power Company Limited (“Changhai”)

BB RS R AT RF B

— AT TR R 5
RNGHEEZEAM R

- HAFTHRRSARMDBEMER A
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ERRRERSH-

REBELAAZREEEREREARLA
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Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s 32.636% interest in Changhai is accounted for under
the equity method and considered for impairment in case of a
significant decline in value. The Group’s share of the profit after
tax from Changhai for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$58,859,000 and the Group’s share of Changhai’'s net asset
was HK$504,268,000 as at 31 December 2017. The accounting for
the results and investments in Changhai is significant to our audit
due to the share in profits and the carrying value of the investment
are substantial, and critical management judgement is required in
determining if there is any decline in value of the investment. In the
context of our audit of the Group’s financial statements, the key
audit matters relating to the Group’s share of the profits and net
assets of Changhai are summarised below:

Revenue recognition - Changhai’s revenue amounted to
HK$1,275,128,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. Revenue
from the sale of electricity and steam is recognised when the related
products are delivered.

Depreciation of fixed asset — The management determined the useful
life of the fixed asset and its related depreciation expense based on
past experience of the actual useful life of fixed asset with similar
nature and function.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

Key Audit Matter: Interests in associates - Nanhai
Changhai Power Company Limited (“Changhai”) (Continued)

RBELAAZREMEREREARLA
(TRB1) (&)

Maintenance provisions — The management estimates the repair
and maintenance expenses and determine such expenses based
on systems and engineer’'s past experience. Determining the
provisions requires significant management judgement and complex
estimates, including the maintenance schedule of boiler and
electricity generation set, projected repair and maintenance costs
and anticipated maintenance risks.

Management analysed Changhai’s cash flow and operating plan and
no abnormal items were found. Management concludes that there is

no impairment of interest in the associate.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Changhai is a significant associate of the Group and we had
performed an audit of Changhai’s financial statements in accordance
with HKSAs for the purpose of inclusion in the Group’s financial
statements. We have evaluated management’s assessment of the
impairment indicators of Changhai. We have determined that the
audit work performed and evidence obtained were sufficient for our
purpose. The procedures performed on the respective key audit
matters included:

For revenue recognition:

- conducting substantive analytical procedures on revenue;

- evaluating journal entries posted to revenue accounts, on a
sample basis, and comparing details of these journal entries
with relevant underlying documentation; and

- assessing whether the revenue took place before and after the

year-end to determine whether the revenue was recognized in
the proper period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BMWETNMEERREETEE (&)

For depreciation of fixed asset:

- scrutinising depreciation-related entries to assess accuracy and
consistency of depreciation policy; and

- testing the depreciation charges through reperformance of a
sample of depreciation calculations and assessing the useful
lives of assets.

For maintenance provisions:

- examing the bases of management’s assessment and
estimates of the repair and maintenance expenses; and

- performing recalculation of the provision with reference to
underlying documentation.

We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these impairment
assessments to be supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.

Key Audit Matter:
Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd (“Financial Leasing”)

Interests in associates - Guangdong
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Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s 25% interests in Financial Leasing are accounted for
under the equity method and considered for impairment in case of
a significant decline in value. The Group’s share of the profit after
tax from Financial Leasing for the year ended 31 December 2017
was HK$16,635,000 and the Group’s share of Financial Leasing’s
net asset was HK$241,303,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
accounting for the results and investments in Financial Leasing is
significant to our audit due to the share in profits and the carrying
value of the investment are substantial, and critical management

judgement applied in determining if there is any decline in value.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

Key Audit Matter:
Financial Leasing Co.,Ltd (“Financial Leasing”) (Continued)

Interests in associates - Guangdong

RBEQAF EEZRRENBMEEERRA
A (TE8R]) (&)

Our audit of the Group’s share of the profits and net assets of
Financial Leasing are summarised below:

Revenue recognition — Financial Leasing’s revenue amounted to
HK$265,965,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. Revenue
from rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant leases and consultancy fee is recorded when the
related services are provided.

Recoverability assessment — Financial Leasing’s management
considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts receivable
from the date credit was initially granted to the end of the reporting
period.

Management analysed Financial Leasing’s cash flow and operating
plan and no abnormal items were found. Management concludes

that there is no impairment of interest in associate.

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Financial Leasing is a significant associate of the Group and is
audited by an auditor not related to us (“the FL Auditor”). Our audit
procedure in the investment in this associate included, among other
things, instructing the FL Auditor on the relevant financial information
of Financial Leasing for the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. We met with the FL Auditor and discussed
their risks assessment and their audit strategy and approach and
reviewed their working papers. Together with the report to us from
the FL Auditor, and our additional procedures performed, we have
determined that the audit work performed and evidence obtained
were sufficient for our purpose.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BREFTEE )

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BMWETNMEERREETEE (&)

We have evaluated management’s assessment of the impairment
indicators of Financial Leasing. The additional audit procedures that
we had performed on the key audit matter included:

For revenue recognition:

- conducting substantive analytical procedures on revenue; and

- reviewing contracts and repayment schedules related to
revenue to assess the timing of revenues recorded.

For recoverability assessment:
- checking, on a sample basis, the repayment schedules and
periodic risk reports to ensure that adequate provision for

impairment loss is provided for the recoverable amount;

- scrutinising credit approval document for each new project to
ensure that the credit amount of the project is reasonable;and

- assessing the insurance coverage on the lease asset.
We found the assumptions adopted in relation to these impairment

assessments to be supportable and reasonable based on available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing, the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosure made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continuea)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continuea)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Fai Fiona

Practicing Certificate Number P4986
Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT—+9F+-F=+—HIt Forthe year ended 31 December 2017
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BET T BT T
Continuing operations BERE 2%,
Revenue WA 6 29,846 24,554
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR 75 AKX AR (22,551) (11,403)
Gross profit E7 7,295 13,151
Other operating income H b ge & A 8 12,741 3,982
Selling and distribution costs HE LD HEAX (123) (701)
Administrative expenses THRX (53,623) (60,564)
Net gain on disposal of an investment HEREYE 2 F KR
property 14,472 -
Share of profit of associates JE G Bt & R R &L A 75,494 67,747
Increase in fair value of investment "EWE 2 A RELN
properties 1,094 -
Finance costs B 75 S 9 (25,449) (22,362)
Profit before taxation B 75 A & F 31,901 1,253
Income tax expense FTSHiF < 10 (4,271) (3,956)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BEREEL 2
continuing operations RERF (&EE) 12 27,630 (2,708)
Discontinued operation ERIEEECER
Loss for the year from ERIEREEBR 2
discontinued operation REEIE 11 - (1,628)
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEFRF,/ (EE) 27,630 (4,331)
Other comprehensive Htima s,
income/(expenses), net of (BA) BR¥LE
income tax
ltem that will not be reclassified to i
profit or loss: BmzEE:
Surplus on revaluation of hotel BIEYEEERH
property 2,818 4,072
ltems that may be reclassified A] abﬁ%ﬁ DEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2EE:
Exchange differences arising on ME B INETE R
translation of foreign operations EEZINEEEE 6,544 (1,598)
Share of exchange difference of JEAGEE & A A
associates HNPE Z FE 49,690 (41,275)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses)  FE £ AUz,
for the year, net of income tax (FZ) - MBRAEH 59,052 (38,801)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) FEZAEMNE (FAX)
for the year 4% 86,682 (43,132)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT—+F+-_F=+—HIt Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BET T BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERERN(FE)
attributable to: B8
Owners of the Company KRFRIER A 31,266 (4,331)
Non-controlling interests IEVE IR M = (3,636) -
27,630 (4,331)
Total comprehensive income/ FEZEAERN (BX)
(expenses) attributable to: B8
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIEZ P =N 88,947 (43,132)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR A 2 (2,265) -
86,682 (43,132)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREAN (E#E) 16
From continuing and SEEE R
discontinued operations ERIEEE 7 ¥EB
Basic HA HK1.83 cents (HKO0.25 cent)
7 %51.834l (A& #0.2510)
Diluted e HK1.83 cents (HKO0.25 cent)
7 %51.834L (A& #0.2510)
From continuing operations REBEE XK
Basic K HK1.83 cents (HKO0.16 cent)
7 %51.8311 (A&#0.1610)
Diluted e HK1.83 cents (HKO0.16 cent)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZTE—+F+=-_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2017

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 2t BET T BT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties HEYE 17 232,525 229,917
Property, plant and equipment ER =Y 18 283,080 244,354
Interests in associates i NI 5 19 745,571 620,387
Available for sale financial asset ARt EEmEE 20 9,172 8,527
1,270,348 1,103,185
Current assets RBEE
Properties held for sale HEME 21 47,820 55,028
Inventories FE 22 494 781
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3k &%
H g W kI8 23 7,926 6,487
Pledged bank deposit EEFRITER 24 63,963 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 24 886,861 151,097
1,007,064 213,393
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables FERTERFR &
H e 518 25 130,852 110,704
Tax payables JEMT & 7,137 6,634
Borrowings EE 26 624,298 36,004
762,287 153,342
Net current assets RBEEFEH 244,777 60,051
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 1,515,125 1,163,236
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital [N 29 171,233 171,233
Reserves 1 849,001 760,054
Equity attributable to owners of AATEBAELER
the Company 1,020,234 931,287
Non-controlling interests FERER 31 157,625 -
1,177,859 931,287
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE—+F+=-A=+—H Asat31 December 2017

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 2t BET T BT T

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings (EEN 26 185,965 100,379
Convertible notes IR 27 135,586 121,092
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEAE 28 15,715 10,478
337,266 231,949
1,515,125 1,163,236

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 178 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

HE XIANGMING
1d [ BF
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAEEAELER
Hotel Convertible
property note Non-
Share Share  Statutory revaluation  Exchange equity  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
EENE TEREE
RA  RHEE EEABR  ERRE  ERRHE  EREE  RBEA @i FEREZ  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETr B%Tn  B%Tr A%t B¥Tr  B%Tn  B%Tr  BETn  B¥Tn  B%TR
THE GROUP R
At 1 January 2017 R-T—t5-f—H 171,233 725,199 79,481 46,108 (129,285) 34,700 3,851 931,287 - 931,287
Profit/{loss) for the year KERRHN/ (BE) - - - - - - 31,266 31,266 (3,636) 27,630
Other comprehensive income/ AEEENZENE/
(expenses) for the year (Ax%)
— Surplus on revaluation of -BENEERRS
hotel property - - - 2,818 - - - 2,818 - 2,818
- Release of revaluation reserve  —EEMEEHREE
of hotel properties e - - - (1,740) - - 1,740 - - -
- Exchange differences arising —BERINEEE
on translation of foreign EECERES
operations - - - - 5173 - - 5,173 1,371 6,544
- Share of exchange difference -EEBERR
of associates EH=EE - - - - 49,690 - - 49,690 - 49,690
Other comprehensive income/ rERRMZERE/
(expenses) for the year (F%) - - - 1,078 54,863 - 1,740 57,681 1,371 59,052
Total comprehensive income/ rEFERENS/
(expenses) for the year (F%) - - - 1,078 54,863 - 33,006 88,947 (2,265) 86,682
Capital injection from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 159,890 159,890
Transfer to statutory reserve BRETTAR - - 17,658 - - - (17,658) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+%
+-A=1+-H 171,233 725,199 97,139 47,186 (74,422) 34,700 19,199 1,020,234 157,625 1,177,859

*

Iltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

TeEHOPHEERE AR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T—t5+-A=+—ALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRREE AEGRES
Hotel Convertible
property note
Share Share Statutory revaluation Exchange equity Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve earnings equity
EEME TRREE
[ B2 EE EELE o Rt ERfEA REEF ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT BT BETT BT BT
THE GROUP g1 |
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E—-A—-H 171,233 725,199 63,858 43,621 (86,412) 34,700 22,220 974,419
Loss for the year FrEEER - - - - - - (4,331) (4,331)
Other comprehensive income/ FEFEMEE
(expenses) for the year Wz / (8%)
— Surplus on revaluation of -BENEERAR
hotel property - - - 4,072 - - - 4,072
- Release of revaluation reserve —BENEERREE
of hotel property L - - - (1,585) - - 1,585 -
- Exchange differences arising on —BERNEHE
translation of foreign operations EECELZEE - - - - (1,598) - - (1,598)
— Share of exchange difference of —EREBERT
associates EHESR - - - - (41,275) - - (41,275)
Other comprehensive income/ RERER2ERE/
(expenses) for the year (F%) - - - 2,487 (42,879) - 1,585 (38,801)
Total comprehensive income/ FEEBZENE/
(expenses) for the year (A%
. . . 2487 (42,879) . 0746  (43132)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREEENR - - 15,623 - - - (15,623) -
At 31 December 2016 NZZ-RE
+ZR=1+-8 171,233 725,199 79,481 46,108 (129,285) 34,700 3,851 931,287
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Consohidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Operating activities RESEE
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEFEAF(EE) 27,630 (4,331)
Adjustment for: FUATIEE (EH A
Interest income FLEMA (3,015) (3,343)
Interest expense B 25,449 22,362
Income tax expenses Frig®i X 4,271 3,956
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEMEZARE
Bl (1,094) -
Share of profit of associates FEAR B & A R & A (75,494) (67,747)
Net gain on disposal of an investment property HEREMER
F WA (14,472) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEREYE-
plant and equipment R K &R A
&8/ (&F) 928 (328)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BBk
RGITE 10,556 10,957
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables JE Y AR 51 e o Ath
JE W SR IE R (B
&8 240 2
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss FER (WA)
E18 (8,775) 16,578
Operating cash flow before movements in BEEFA 2
working capital KERPRE (33,776) (21,894)
Decrease in inventories =0 287 282
Decrease in properties held for sale EREMERD 7,208 -
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUAR SR I H
JiE W R IR 2 38 N (2,772) (1,873)
Increase in trade and other payables FERTBRSR R E A
J& 5 53R 2 38 N 18,987 6,242
Cash used in operations LEREIRE (10,066) (17,243)
Tax paid =R (6) (3,038)
Net cash used in operating activities RETH RS
R FEE (10,072) (20,281)

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED i[5 B 3% 35 3 47 bR 23 %]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

69



70

HEBERE
Consohidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Investing activities RETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME BE
B (42,873) (11,589)
Addition to investment properties BEREME (5,991) -
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with more than 17 AR 2| 8 B #318
three months to maturity when placed —@AAZTEHER
WA (38 n) 16,741 (13,161)
Dividend received 2 AR 8 777 31,036
Placement of pledged bank deposit BT R (63,963) -
Interest received 2 U H B 3,331 3,341
Net proceeds from disposal of property, plant and LEWE - -HE&
equipment B2 FT1S R
R 548 11,212
Net proceeds from disposal of an investment HEREMENFSE
property RIBFE 33,472 -
Net cash (used in)/generated RETEZ2EE
from investing activities (HE)/ FAFE (57,958) 20,839
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HEBRESRE
Consohidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Financing activities il & SEE
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ST E 159,890 -
Interest paid EXREIIPSN (9,794) (9,737)
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER (10,441) (3,507)
Proceeds from borrowings & B PS5 IE 674,801 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEH2EE
financing activities WA (GRd)
FE 814,456 (13,244)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBELEHEEHR
cash equivalents i, )
FHE 746,426 (12,686)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HAZzBEE&R
RE%ERA 134,356 155,372
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes ExESH s EE 6,079 (8,330)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=-—A=+—-8%2
ReRBELEHE
HE 886,861 134,356
Analysis of the balances of cash and HeRESEEEE
cash equivalents, being: HEROWMBUT
HEAMK:
Bank balances and cash BITEBRRRS 886,861 151,097
Less: time deposits with maturity over three BWoBBR=@EAZ
months EHER - (16,741)
886,861 134,356

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED i[5 B 3% 35 3 47 bR 23 %]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

71



72

BE_T—

ok BV 285 A B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
+E+=-HA=+—HIL¥E Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is
Prize Rich Inc, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the ultimate holding company is Guangdong
Nanhai Holding Investment Co., Ltd, which was incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
of the annual report.

During the year, the principal activities of the Group are
property development and investment, hotel operation and
investment holding. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are described in note 36.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is their Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are or
have become effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
on 1 January 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of new or revised HKFRSs has no material effect
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

FE R 3R] R ARAE 5T & 78 Bt 3%
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ (BEBMBREE
Bl

RARFEE AEBR_T—+tF—F—
AR ZENTRFEERRBER
ARG ([BERERAAE])RM
ZTAFHETREEITREW B MEE
Al

BEAGITHER BRITE
F7% (1B5])
EoR= il AR BERE
F125% (£3T) RIELET A
BE
BEBMBEMEER (ERBBHMB
F125% (£3T) HE 2R
—E-NFERE
ZE-RF
REZ 2
2R E Y

REZRBZHET REERT BBV ER
SFEAMNERARFE 2R A M RKR T
Sl RE AR,/ SRE RS

REE-

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b 5 8 3% ¥ JBt 45 f 24 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

73



Aok B 25 R PR

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instrument’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and

Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Lease?

Insurance Contracts®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

As part of the Annual
Improvements
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle’

Long-term Interest in Associated
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’
Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs), the collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical costs are
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets.

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities (including structured

entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

3.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income or
expenses are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies to
be in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Business combination

Acquisition of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after reassessment, the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from the interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.
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HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition within the scope of HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

i. Hotel property

Hotel property is stated at revalued amounts, being
fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
impairment losses. Fair value is determined with reference
to appraisals by external professional valuers with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

i.

ii.

Hotel property (Continued)

Any surplus arising on revaluation of hotel property
is recognised in other comprehensive income and is
accumulated in the properties revaluation reserve in
equity, unless the carrying amount of that asset has
previously suffered a revaluation decrease or impairment
loss. To the extent that any decrease has previously
been recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase
is credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of the
increase dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of hotel property arising
on revaluations or impairment testing is recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the hotel property revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining
decrease is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment (other than Hotel
properties)

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel property)
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

ii.

iii.

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel
property) (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than hotel property)
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

2% to 10%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings
Furniture, equipment and
leasehold improvements
10% to 30%
15% to 30%

Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when it is completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into financial
assets as loans and receivables and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Dividend on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For the financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes

The component parts of the compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
estimated by using the prevailing market interest rate.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
When the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPI.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, when the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s
statement of financial position (i.e. when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires). The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the end of each reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.

(i) Hotel operation and elderly wellness and care
business

Revenue arising from hotel operation and elderly wellness
and care business is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.

3.

+E+=-HA=+—HIE¥FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

BEESHEE (#)

ERREREEZREESE (BEK
)

AEBRESREHRFEEELLER
BEZHREE UBEXFEEAGR
EEBZHR g —REEZAKE
BfEFHEREREE IRREEZR
[ {8 BV #5000 = EL T W [BHE - SR B B 1R 1
EIRER A o

WREBERNEZER ZEEZRHE
BRFASEL f/uﬂéﬁ.ﬁ'z—ﬂ%l@@ i:3
A Mz EEERN RRZEERA
TFEENEERREEEMEETE R
T {8 - 8 [0 7 R (8 &5 18 7] B B 4% e 58 A
WA e

EAEPRERPEERLHIERER &
BeHEAEFRZEFEELTTRE
BIE o

Wy 35 7 R

Wammt W ERREZ ARERE
HERABEBBEPMREE DMK
5 2 B NERIT 0 Ko 3K & AR R B TR 9 R R

() BEEERAREEZXE

H_

BEEEEB 2K
[88 IR 765 By FE 528

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED b [ 8 3% ¥ JBt 45 f 24 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

95



96

Aok B B 255 A PR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods other than properties are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Rental income

Rental income arising from properties let under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the respective leases.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 ¢ Jit 45 fR 2 5]

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4%t

3. EEGSHHE &)

W ()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

BEYHE

BRI EMHEINBBE
YRR e EERERS B T LARERR

HENE

BEWEZ MAEFITRERY
RNZANREEREGNE
BB RETRR -

HE KA

HeBROZ WELA BN
ANpE RO E SRR -
FILE WA
FlEWA TS E KEA S R
P4 UUESS ES T
BB A

1808 T 9 B 84 A\ T 7 IR 3R M E
0B 7 HE RIS B TR (R

MERAIBERARNEE MW ABESH
ASEMEE) -



ook BV 255 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangement, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 ¢ Jit 45 fR 2 5]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4%t

3.

BEESHEE (#)

BE (&)

BRI S FIRNH B A R R4 QR
ZIRENRREEREEZ RT3
ERTE R MEZREM T IARR  EAS
(%) O] 47 1| 8¢ [0 0 B B 2= R ] R K AT R
FART R % 2 8 [0 i) 3 Bk 1 2= S RIBR A1 -
HZERERER AR ER TR
ERELNELERIEEEEN A

EHERBRF B AT R ZENF
w BFEER A R AR B RS & T A
MR o

ERERIBEE ZRHENS RS HRIE
e WHEREEATHRERTEN
U m 2 5k #0 BE AR IEF R -

BEERIBDRBHRNEEERLERE
EHR AR BB Z R ARE RIE A
REDEITEARBOEITIHE (R
E)ZRERERE-

ELERAABEREEZFERRNESE
HRGEAEEBEREDHEELEE
RBBEZREBEBAAEEZHBFER-



ook BV 255 A B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, time deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts or bank loans, if
any, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of an enterprise’s cash managements are also included as
component of cash and cash equivalents.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that management has made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed that
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. Moreover, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is lower than acquisition cost. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on change in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
incomes taxes on disposal of its investment properties.

Deferred taxation on hotel property

By comparing the initial cost and the revaluated value of PRC
hotel properties of the Group, the Directors considered that
no capital gain may generate and does not constitute a timing
difference and not expect to settle the carrying amount of the
tax liabilities. Therefore, deferred tax has not been recognised
in respect of the valuation surplus relating to hotel property.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimated the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Machinery and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the higher
of fair value of the machinery and equipment less costs to
sell or the value-in-use calculations. An impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2017 the Group reported no
impairment loss for certain machinery, equipment and motor
vehicles (2016: Nil).

Estimate of impairment of hotel properties

Hotel properties are reviewed by management for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use of the hotel properties. Management makes judgements
on whether such events or changes in circumstances have
occurred, and makes estimates in determining the recoverable
amount.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
+E+=-HA=1+—HIL¥E Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s other assets and
liabilities

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The qualified
external valuers establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports
the findings of the qualified external valuers to the board of
Directors of the Company every quarter to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 5, 17 and
18 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s properties

The Group’s properties were revalued as at 31 December 2017
based on appraised market values provided by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimate
of fair value, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties in the same
location and condition and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

The carrying amounts of investment properties and hotel
property at 31 December 2017 was HK$232,525,000 and
HK$115,000,000 respectively (2016: HK$229,917,000 and
HK$112,000,000).

Estimation of net realisable value of properties held for
sale

Management reviews the recoverable amount of properties
held for sale at the end of each reporting period. The
recoverable amount is the estimated selling price of the
properties less costs to sell. Management makes estimates in
determining the recoverable amount.

4.

EABHHEGRGETEER
ENEERR 2

SEYMEQIARE

REH AR EGBR AEEEEEE
BiZTAURE M EEN Y E
ZHRAITE UEREXTEREZHEN
RZTREHZRE - FEVER-F
—tF T A=t BRBIEEME
BPTRT i 2 MEETEML - BREED
RIEE TERJRET WEPDE T RE
AEEREHEREREERER

RZE—+E+-_A=+—HBEREY
XRBEMEZEEES R ABK
232,525,0007T & 7 #115,000,0007T
—EF—XF 7 #229,917,0007T & B
#112,000,0007T ) °

FHENRATRRFE

EEENEREREFHEDEN AU
Bl & RBAET R - AT Bl S BEIEXY
EEAHHEBERARAIHEERN &
BESAWEERRETHE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts of trade and
other receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables.
Allowances are made on trade and other receivables whenever
there is any objective evidence that the balances may not be
collectible. In determining whether an allowance for bad and
doubtful debts is required, the Group takes into consideration
the aging status and the likelihood of collection. Following
the identification of doubtful debts, Management investigates
the relevant debts and reports on the recoverability. Specific
allowance is only made for those trade and other receivables
that are unlikely to be collected. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of trade and other receivables is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amounts of debtors and doubtful debt expenses in the periods
in which such estimate has been changed.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables at 31
December 2017 is HK$7,926,000 (2016: HK$6,487,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 23.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in the
PRC and Hong Kong and accordingly are subject to special
considerations and several risks.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v 5 B 3 ¥ 5 47 B 24 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earned revenue and incurred costs in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Hong Kong Dollar. The effect of
exchange rate fluctuation on earned revenue and incurred
costs would be able to offset each other in the business
operation of the Group. RMB had been in the trend of
appreciation and gradually became stable until the second half
of 2008. But where the exchange rate of RMB started to move
downward in recent years. The Directors expected that RMB’s
exchange rate will not fluctuate drastically on cause material
adverse foreign exchange risk on the Group in the long run.
Therefore, the Group currently does not have any specific need
for foreign exchange risk hedging.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

5.

+E+=-HA=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

MEERERE &)
SNERB

AREBRIA e REEHKAEE
ARE (TAR®]) MBI o XK
B MBS BEENKANT EE
AEENEHLETSHEEH AR
BHEKEX—BETHLH BE-F
ZENETEFBRRBE-TB TFA
RENHEREABRTHK EFRR/A
REEXEIAEBIABERE UK
TEHAREERBBRERTHIMER
B o [ bt 7K &2 B 3R B 30 B AE AT 3E L S
FESMNERBIELEPNFE-

RBERR REBUIIMNESHENER
EEREYBENKREENT

At 31 December

R+=—A=+-—-8H

2017 2016
—=E— + EF SN E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Assets BE
Denominated in Renminbi ARB®EE 258,672 116,428
Denominated in US dollars ELLEE 643,440 16,671
902,112 133,099

Liabilities afE
Denominated in Renminbi ARB®EE 211,931 153,086

Denominated in US dollars ENLHEHE 546,826

758,757 153,086
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure (Continued)

The following shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase/
decrease in RMB against Hong Kong dollars. The sensitivity
analysis includes only RMB denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
RMB dollars rates. If there is a 5% increase/decrease in RMB
exchange rate against Hong Kong dollars, the effect in the
profit for the year is as follows:

5.

MEERERE &)
NERK (F)

TRETARKLEETEH2E%
M BURE DT - ZRBRE DT EBIEIA
ARBENEEEE RFRAEA
REEXZEBE%MBARERE - HARE
ABEAE R ES% AIEFEHEERN

FaEmn:

At 31 December

At+=-—BR=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Increase/decrease in profit for the year FEBEIFEM R 17,374 10,978
Capital risk management EcRBRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to equity
holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt
(which includes bank loans and convertible notes) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings).

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and will balance its overall capital structure
through issue of new shares as well as the issue of new debts
or the redemption of existing debts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The directors monitor capital on the basis of net debt-to-equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated based on net debt and equity. Net
debt is calculated as total interest-bearing bank loans and debt
component of convertible bonds less cash and bank balances.
The Group’s policy is to keep the debt-to-equity ratio at a
reasonable level.

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period

ook BV 255 A B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

5. BIXRABER &)

EcEBRER (&)

EENFAEERSL R REEERE
Kozttt XU BBEFENERFTE A
BEFRRA BRITRBE N E S

M B &

PR & MRTT 48 8k I 2 4R

ROIFERAE - AEEREEEFAE

SR

ERBEATBIKT o

RBERR AEFREERL RN

is as follows: T:

2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Debts (Note 1) BE (M) 945,849 257,475

Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEYD (886,861) (151,097)

Net debt FEE 58,988 106,378

Equity (Note 2) Ewm (MEE2) 1,020,234 931,287

Net debt to equity ratio FHEMERILE 6% 11%

Notes: B3 -

1) Debt comprises long-term and short-term bank loans and debt 1) E® E%EH}%&LH%E?TE STz
component of convertible notes as detailed in notes 26 and 27 REEOHEELD 2FED RIS
respectively. 26 5% WEZ? o

2)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of 2) HBHPEARTHEBEAEBGEAEER

the Company

i
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed
interest rate borrowings from banks (see note 26 for details
of these borrowings). The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises from
the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2016:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rates is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would decrease/increase by HK$518,000 (2016: HK$572,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the board of Directors. In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to HK$244,777,000 (2016: HK$60,051,000) and
current ratio (being current assets divided by current liabilities)
was approximately 1.32 times (2016: 1.39 times) while
total current assets amounted to HK$1,007,064,000 (2016:
HK$213,393,000), which is sufficient to meet the capital
requirement of the Group’s operations and development in the
foreseeable future.

5.

MEERERE &)
RBESABEE

EEenndEcEREERKAR
AREERBESARMNS A5H
ERRAREEERARANAS LR
EEEEBKF AR EBHLE
THEREREKDNFE - EEES
ERRITERNEAER  URERE
STER e

RZE—+F+ZA=+—H K&
B2 FmEEE /B 244,777,0007T

— T — X4 B ¥60,051,0000T) i
FHE(ARBEERTBDEAGB NA
1.32(8 (Z 2 —/"F 1 1.396%)  MBR
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. BIRABRER &)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) REBESEBRER (£)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into AEEzeRBERBER T 2F AR
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period HEHRRZADINHRERBBEI B
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity ETRSM-MTRZEEIHIREGLD
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual KB ZEESMERE
undisclosed cash flows.
2017
—E-tF
Weighted Total Total
average undiscounted carrying
interest rate  On demand Within 1 year 1-3 years 4-5years Over5years  cash flows amount
miE FERRS
THF= EZX —EhR —B= mERE BENE HELE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
Trade and other payables ERETR
R AN - 130,852 - - - - 130,852 130,852
Borrowings B8
- Short term borrowings -RHEE 2.38 - 56,633 648,347 3,605 22,079 730,664 702,293
- Long term borrowings -RHRE 6.15 - 17,148 32,532 41,743 38,140 129,563 107,970
Convertible notes issued on R =ZT—M4F
13th October 2014 TA+=H
BRI
aRER 14.16 - 3,325 169,557 - - 172,882 135,586
130,852 77,106 850,436 45,348 60,219 1,163,961 1,076,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-_ZT—+E+-_A=+—BLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. MKERKRERE &)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) REBESEBRER (£)
2016
-1 F
Weighted Total Total
average undiscounted carrying
interest rate~ On demand ~ Within 1 year 1-3 years 4-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
mig KRR
THHE EEX —ENR —E=F MERF BENE MELE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT BT BT BETR BB
Trade and other payables ERETR
EthERTR - 110,704 - - - - 110,704 110,704
Borrowings B8
- Short term borrowings -RHEE 2.09 - 1,802 3,605 3,605 23,881 32,893 27,075
- Long term borrowings -RHRE 6.15 - 14,175 31,338 34,663 54,452 134,628 109,308
Convertible notes issued on R =T —4F
13th October 2014 TA+=H
BEIT
TARER 14.16 - 3,325 172,881 - - 176,206 121,092
110,704 19,302 207,824 38,268 78,333 454,431 368,179
Credit risk FEERE
=5

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, Management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determining of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
receivable.

In addition, there is no concentration of accounts
In this regard, the Directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Details of the Group’s credit policies are included in note 23.

EREeHMmIAENRZSHRER
BEeMTAZERBITEST, E%A
SEEAVBKER  AREREEER

ERAR’ZS%E'\]%@E;%/)E—?H/\EEL
EETEER FEFHREMERE
P DA R R SR B BR 3 15 s Uk 1= 36 HR M 7% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. BIRABRER &)
Fair value DNRE
i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other i) HUFIREARZELT@TAZLR
than fair value ZE
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors BRTNRATEFMAEIN RATESER
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of RRBIEK A ENES BB W
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FrHEMmeRmEERCRBER
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements HEREELALBEMEE:
approximate their fair values:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
IREE ARE B (E NRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B¥T T BETIT BETIT
Financial liability cHAaRE
Liability component of AHREERAESS
convertible notes 135,586 135,586 121,092 121,092

The fair value of the liability component of convertible

notes is determined assuming there will not be any early

redemption and at a 14.16% discount rate.

i)  The fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

CHINA INVESTMENT!

the fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
active bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MEEBRER &)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category BRERE P z2eMEEREEHNE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEEREEIRRZENEERARE
liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period are REEZRATERE S eI ES
categorised as follows. See Note 3 for explanations about EHHEBHEZ2VETBAU2HM T
how the classification of financial instruments affects their 3o

subsequent measurement.

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Financial assets tRMEE
Available for sale financial assets AHEZEMEE 9,172 8,527
Loans and receivables: B W EROE
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3k K Ho A
JE R I8 1,302 2,096
Pledged bank deposit BHERITHER 63,963 -
Cash and cash equivalents HENREZEY 886,861 151,097
961,298 161,720
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Financial liabilities measured at REHNATEZ
amortised cost: THAaE:
Convertible notes EIEELE S 135,586 121,092
Trade and other payables FERTRR SR R H A
J& 7R I8 107,910 92,000
Borrowings B 810,263 136,383
1,053,759 349,475
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

6. REVENUE 6.

Revenue represents the gross amounts received and receivable
for revenue arising on hotel operation and elderly wellness
and care business, and goods or properties sold by the Group
to external customers, less return and allowances and gross
rental income during the year.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised

WA

WA EFARBEEEERNRESEZ
X HEWE AKERIRETFIH
EEMMBRERERITMAREE WAL
MAEEZC BB 2 AR -

FRRERATERNZTHEZERN

during the year is as follows: SELT:
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Food and beverage B 538 7,783
Service income from hotel operation BIEEEWA 1,392 9,887
Rental income from hotel property TR A 2,493 2,318

Rental income from investment properties KEMERGTEDE

and properties held for sale Hae WA 6,373 4,566
Sales of properties & 15,944 -
Service income from Wellness elderly care RNIEEEZREKA 3,106 -
29,846 24,554
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into three operating divisions — hotel operation, property
investments and wellness elderly care business. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary
segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Hotel operation — hotel ownership and management

Property investments — holding investment properties and
properties held for sale
Wellness elderly care — comprehensive elderly care services
business

For the property investment operations, management reviews
the financial information of each property investment, hence
each property investment constitutes a separate operating
segment. However, the properties investment possess similar
economic characteristics, with similar development and selling
activities as well as similar customer bases. Therefore, all
properties investment are aggregated into one reportable
segment for segment reporting purposes.

Wood processing operation was discontinued in the year
ended 31 December 2016. The segment information reported
below does not include any amount for this discontinued
operation, which is described in more details in note 11.

2 EER

REERR AEEERKE O/ =EL
BEBOMIBEEL PERERK
BEREXH AKEUEEDER
HEZHRHEEDHEHR -

TEXBOT:
B Ik 57 -  BEHAENR
=g
MERE - FBAEREDER
FEME
RgFgEz — RBREZHEERG
E

MMEREEBME ASEEEEE
FEBERENENTHER  WEEK
BMEBRBIUKLED T AT KE
MEABROUNEBERFE BERIE
ERAC - BLEMEE - Bt BT
BREMEORBER/—EARS D A
foEE2HR A -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Segment information about these continuing operations is

BRZSHELEEH 2 DMERZT

presented below:

mF

Segment Revenue

Segment result

2EBBA D EEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—t& ZT-R"E —E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT AT T BETRT AT T
Hotel operation BIEEH 4,423 19,988 (17,133) (5,196)
Property investments MEKE 22,317 4,566 20,547 (2,421)
Wellness elderly care business REEEEER 3,106 - (5,561) -
Total @it 29,846 24,554 (2,147) (7,617)
Interest income F WA 3,015 3,343
Professional fees HEBHR (2,574) (1,027)
Net central administration costs PRITBAKAERE (25,213) (22,253)
Net exchange gain/(loss) IE X e/ (E18)F5 8,775 (16,578)
Share of profit of associates fE(R B N B AT 75,494 67,747
Finance costs B (25,449) (22,362)
Profit before taxation Fr 5% B 2 71 31,901 1,253
Income tax expense FEMEx (4,271) (3,956)
Profit/(loss) for the year REREF/ (BE) 27,630 (2,703)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the current year (2016: Nil).

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) generated by each
segment without allocation of interest income, professional
fees, net central administration costs, net exchange gain/
(loss), share of profit of associates and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the Group’s management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. oEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERAERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Continuing operations HERE ¥R
Hotel operation B JE ZE T 160,802 122,243
Property investments YEKE 292,463 296,241
Wellness elderly care business RNEEEEZEE 550 -
Total segment assets Mo EE 453,815 418,484
Assets relating to discontinued operation ERIEEEEBZ
BE - 391
Pledged bank deposit EHEMRITER 63,963 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEYD 886,861 151,097
Interests in associates REE RN 2w 745,571 620,387
Available for sale financial assets A ESREE 9,172 8,527
Unallocated assets AOBREE 118,030 117,692
Consolidated assets maBE 2,277,412 1,316,578
Segment liabilities PHAE
Continuing operations BERE XK
Hotel operation B 5 5 14,837 3,919
Property investments YEKE 108,475 115,710
Wellness elderly care business KERSEER 2,380 -
Total segment liabilities woarE 125,692 119,629
Liabilities relating to discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
Bf&E - 1,028
Convertible notes AR E R 214,407 199,911
Borrowings A 702,293 27,075
Unallocated liabilities el =K 57,161 37,648
Consolidated liabilities maaE 1,099,553 385,291
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEER (&)
Other segment information Hih 2 HEH
2017 —E—tF
Continuing operations BEKE XY
Wellness
Hotel Property elderly care
operation investments business Total
KRR
B B MERE BEEEE fst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BYETT BETT BETRT
Depreciation wE 5,416 2,180 5 7,601
Additions to investment property 1% & ¥ ¥ &5 - 5,991 - 5,991
Additions to property, plantand 1% -BERRERE
equipment 37,825 4,770 38 42,633
Net gain on disposal of HEREWME 2 F =
investment property - 14,472 - 14,472
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment Bl ki (1,031) - - (1,031)
2016 —=
Continuing operations SIS E 2T
Wellness
Hotel Property elderly care
operation investments business Total
REEER
I MEXRE BEER st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Depreciation e 5,876 1,913 - 7,789
Additions to property, plantand ~ #1% - BENRRERE
equipment 2,445 5,498 - 7,938
(Loss)/gain on disposal HEME - BE R E
of property, plant and 2 (B1B)/BF
equipment (5) 446 - 441
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s hotel operation and wellness elderly care business
are located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
other than Hong Kong.

Property investments are located in both the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers by location of operation and information about its
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

external customer

DEER (&)

EEWESBER
AEEZBELBERARESZ LB
RpEARENE ([FE] TaEE
) o

MR E R R B R B o
AEERAIBEFBELLER I

nREEUEI D NEFRBEERE
ENES D ZER  F@mT:

Revenue from

Non-current assets”

SRR F 2 HE WS FRBEE"
2017 2016 2017 2016
—2-tfF —E-RF —E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BET T BT T
The PRC H 28,475 22,798 378,902 319,805
Hong Kong e 1,371 1,756 19,512 38,516
29,846 24,554 398,414 358,321

*

Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, available for
sale financial assets and unallocated non-current assets

* FRBEETRBEREE AR 2
AIHEESREERADEIERDE

Eo

Information about major customers

During the year, out of the Group’s revenues of HK$29,846,00,
HK$3,106,000 arising from comprehensive elderly care service
which was contributed by one customer who accounted for
more than 10% of Group’s total revenue.

IEEFEHR

RER REEBZLEBRRAEBE
29,846,000 Hir G BEE R BB
3,106,000t W AR B EEH — L =&
BFE MRKEZETEZEFPKRARSER
EEEHEBEBE10% -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 8. Hi&EWA
Other operating income included the following items: Hih g2 WA BEATIAR
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BFERECER
Bank interest income ]RIT A B WA 3,015 3,343
Net exchange gain HE H WS 8,775 -
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BI¥XH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T AT
Continuing operations HERE X
Interest on: TAEBEZHE:
Bank loans RITER 6,686 6,412
Convertible notes Al R I R 17,819 15,950
Loan from immediate holding company EEERARER 249 -
Loan from an associate BERNRZER 695 -
25,449 22,362

1 26 CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED v 5 B 3 ¥ 5 47 B 24 7]
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

10. FREBIBAX

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Continuing operations BERE ¥
Tax charges comprise: REHIBERZBRE:
Current tax: RNERIE
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HFRESEMERH
B - (1,906)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax —BABMEHEE (6) -
Deferred tax (see note 28): IEEFIIE (MI7E28) -
Temporary differences arising in current year ~ ANF 2 ERFEER (4,265) (2,050)
(4,271) (3,956)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made at 16.5% (2016: Nil)
as the Group has assessable profits in Hong Kong for the

year ended 31 December 2017. PRC subsidiaries are subject

to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for the year ended 31

December 2016.

HRAEBEBEE Tt +-A
St—RILEAEBFBERVEN 8%
1652 MEBRNBERENEGHR(=F
—RFETZA=t—HIL:&\) -#HEZ
E-RET_A=t—BRPTENKEB
DA R25% < R BT BEEERME
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

10. A58 X (#)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

REGFEEEMEMEERER TR
MIES A AR SR WH AT

2017 2016
—E—+ 5 —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation B 5 A & F 31,901 1,253
Tax at the rates applicable to profit in EZEBEREF
the countries concerned WA ERAE 2
IR (2,489) 1,422
Tax effect of share of profit of associates B E RARARN 2
M E 8,185 7,222
Tax effect of non deductible expenses THRAORASZ 2
MG TE (6,652) (9,837)
Tax effect of non taxable revenue FEERTWA 2
MR & 5,353 1,846
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RIERBIARE
G (8,668) (4,609)
Tax effect for the year REEZMGTE (4,271) (3,956)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In prior year, Foshan City Nanhai District Safety Supervision
Authority, Jiujiang Division (“Safety Supervision Authority”)
issued a notice to Foshan City Nanhai Kang Sheng Timber
Company Limited (“Kang Sheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary,
requiring it to upgrade its production facilities to a higher level
of environmental protection standard.

In this regard, the Board resolved to cease the Group’s
wood processing business (“discontinued operation”) on 31
December 2016 after considering the cost of upgrading the
existing machineries.

The results of the discontinued operation included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below.

ERIEREXER

REE BLUTEEENIAZ 2 EE
BUR2EER) M2 ENBARH
LR B E AR AR ([FEE])
FHEREN EXEALERRER

BERHRRITERR -

UL S KAEEFRBEOEEZ KX
A EFQ@ER_FT—-R"E+_-A
St BRERUEAREEZARREER
B[R EEEEK]) -

HARE-®-AET-A=T+-BL
TEFAEEREMEERERREA
ReRBRZDRIEE R 2 REH
RFx

2016

—T-RE

HK$'000

¥ I

Revenue A 2,278

Cost of sales 55 K AR (2,842)

Gross loss T (564)

Selling and distribution costs HE LD HAX (495)

Administrative expenses THRX (569)

Loss before taxation from ERIEEEEERTAEE

discontinued operation (1,628)

Income tax expense FrisfAx -
Loss for the year from discontinued operation B R ILEEEBAFEHEEBEARGHES A

and attributable to owners of the Company FE(hE1E (1,628)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11.

Loss from discontinued operation for the year ended 31
December 2016 includes the following:

BRIEKEER &)

BE-Z—AF+ZA=+—HLEFE
EREREERBREBEUTZE:

2016

—E-RF

HK$'000

BT I

Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B & -

Depreciation e 235
Cash flows from discontinued operation BERIEBEEFE R

2016

—T-RE

HK$'000

¥ I

Net cash outflows from operating activities RELEREIR S M F5E (411)

Net cash outflows e R FRE (411)

None of the assets or liabilities related to the discontinued
operation was classified as held for sale.
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12. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

12. ZF &R (B8)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT I
Continuing operations BESE XK
Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived REFZREFM(FHE)
at after crediting/(charging): Bt A (30R) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « BiE MR EITE (10,556) (10,722)
Auditor’s remuneration % 256 B
Audit service Fat IR (1,200) (1,150)
Non-audit service IEEF R (106) 4)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BWERZE
plant and equipment 2 (BB &aF (928) 328
Net gain on disposal of an investment property HEREWE 2
F U AR 14,472 -
Net gain on disposal of properties held for sale H&EFEWE
TS 6,199 -
Impairment loss on trade and JE LS AR SR T L A UK
other receivables MIE 2 BIEEE (240) ()
Net exchange gain/(loss) bE X &BF S (EBER)
R 8,775 (16,578)
Cost of properties held for sale recognized WARAEBRAX 2
as expense HFEWMEMR 7,208 -
Cost of inventories recognized as expense BRBRX 2FERAN 5,551 11,373
Total staff costs @8 TR
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) EE1 (8,149) (6,105)
Other staff costs Hh 8 TR (12,394) (13,771)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions HM B T Z2RIK
for other staff & M a8l R (929) (1,300)
Termination benefits BIEEKRT (8,555) -
(25,027) (21,176)
Gross rental income from investment wREME L BHE
properties WA 6,373 4,566
Less: W
Direct operating expenses from investment FABHESBAZ
properties that generated rental income WEMEZEE
during the year KERX (21) (29)
Direct operating expenses from investment FREHSKAZ
properties that did not generate WEME B
rental income during the year S (2,037) (2,585)
4,315 1,952
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETMS
EMOLUMENTS
a. Directors’ emoluments a. EEMe
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight BENHESNE (ZZE—FRF N
(2016: nine) Directors were as follows: BIVESEAZHMESWOT:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fees e BET T BT T
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. He Xiangming o] [A) BR 5 4 120 -
Mr. Lin Pingwu R L E 120 -
Mr. You Guang Wu i ER A 120 -
Mr. Huang Zhihe B|EAMEAE 120 130
Ms. Wang Xin * &+ 120 130
Mr. Su Wenzhao BR8] A
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (R=ZF—R%F
—AZ+HEE) - -

Independent non-executive directors By FHTESE

Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B {2 55 A 120 100
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR K S A 120 100
Mr. Deng Hong Ping BRI s 120 100
960 560
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETME (#)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEME (£)
2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Salaries and other benefits HFeRHEMBER BT T BT T
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. He Xiangming o] (A AR 5 4 600 1,244
Mr. Lin Pingwu R L E 600 1,028
Mr. You Guang Wu i ER A 600 1,244
Mr. Huang Zhihe mEMEE 413 304
Ms. Wang Xin T M+ 413 304
Mr. Su Wenzhao BR8] A
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (R=ZF—R%F
— A=+ HEIE) - 170

Independent non-executive directors BV FHTES

Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B & 5F A& - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR S A& = -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping BRI - _

2,626 4,294
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETME (&2
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

134

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

a. ESM® (&)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
Performance-based or BREFIMIBERN HK$’000 HK$’000
discretionary bonus ZIEAL BT T BT T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming fa] [7) BR 5% A 936 136
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR L HE 936 120
Mr. You Guang Wu ER A 936 136
Mr. Huang Zhihe EEHEMEE 655 140
Ms. Wang Xin T &=L 655 140
Mr. Su Wenzhao B 8ISt
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (RZZE—RF
—AZ+HEE) - 130
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTEE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR B0 (& 55 A - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BRIZRK £ A& - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping R E A - -
4,118 802
2017 2016
—E—LHF —E—RF
Retirement benefits HK$’000 HK$’000
scheme contribution R RE R B AR BET T BT T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. He Xiangming Al TA) B 58 A 102 112
Mr. Lin Pingwu MR £ 102 90
Mr. You Guang Wu h R S 85 89
Mr. Huang Zhihe |mEMEA 78 71
Ms. Wang Xin T ME=* 78 71
Mr. Su Wenzhao BR B S A
(resigned on 20 January 2016) (RZE—RHF
—AZ+HEE) - 16
Independent non-executive directors By HTEE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PSR B {2 5E A - -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng PR3 B % A - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping R S Ak = -
445 449
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments disclosed above include their
services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company, and its subsidiary. No Directors had
waived any emoluments for both years. Save as disclosed
above, no other emoluments were paid or payable to any
Director.

During the year ended 2017 and 2016, no emoluments
had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest-paid individuals referred to in (d) below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests, transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance to which the Group as a party and in which
a Director of the Group had material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors of the Group or body corporate controlled by
such directors, or entities connected with such directors,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

13. EERETIME &)

BExME (&)

EREBEBZHITRBIIIFNTE
ZEEMERRERERADAR
EffB AR e EBMEH 2z g8
R -RMEFER LEESER
BEMME - R EREEIN E
MEE W EWEE AL -

HEZZT—tFER_T— FIEF
B AEEWEAESL T X
REAEGZETHATZABEE
BREEMASEINANEEF
LRBIERREBM 2 BEE-

EERXS RGN ZEAE
=

AEEBMEIVASEESTEER
AHEREREEA MR F RN
FAEAKENAFEZERR
5 RHERAEH -

NESERAZBAZER EEXR
Hitt X5

MEAXAEEEZTARXFES
2 EEAZEEETCHER
BRRas AR FREFAREIM
BRDATFEZER EEREHE
R 5
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
d. Five highest-paid individuals

During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 13a. No
individual other than the directors has been included in
the five-higher-paid individuals.

13.

EERETIME #)

d IEREFMAL

REA - AEBRERSFMA
THAEE EMSEME183an
ol TEFZHN RBEEMAEM
ATHAARLEESFTMA L

2017 2016

—E—+HF TE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other benefits Fe kEMER - 1,379
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K18 1) 5T 2 4 3 - 42
- 1,421

In prior year, the emoluments of the above two highest
paid individuals are less than HK$1,000,000.

14. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme which is available to Hong Kong permanent employees
under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. This
retirement scheme is administered by independent trustees
with their assets held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions under the staff retirement scheme for each
year are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.
The total contribution to the scheme amounted to HK$37,650
(2016: HK$37,650) for the year and has been charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Forfeited employer contributions in
respect of former employees from the staff retirement scheme
before vesting period may be used by the Group to reduce
its ongoing employer contributions. There is no forfeited
contribution utilised during the year.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (continuea)

At the end of the reporting period, there is no balance of
forfeited contributions available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

Since the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF Scheme with Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited effective 1 December 2001 to provide an
MPF Scheme to all employees. The contributions borne by the
Group are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly
contribution is limited at 5% of HK$30,000 for each eligible
employee) under the MPF legislation. During the year under
review, the total amount contributed by the Group to the MPF
Scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income amounted to HK$74,118
(2016: HK$74,440).

Employees in the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$31,266,000 (2016: loss of
HK$4,331,000) and on the number of 1,712,329,142 ordinary
shares (2016: 1,712,329,142 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year.

14.

15.

16.

EERKETE (&)

AR S A A R A - I ORI
£ ] R AR D R 2 A K

BEBHTRSEAER ([RE£])
R AEBTR =TT —F+=ZA—
HEZ2MTRBETERARZRR
wESRE MM B TR E SR
gl NEB MR TIBIFARTE AR
FERMB 5% E (RREKRETIZ
5 AR R B 30,0007T,25% ) ° KA
AEEFE AEERBEDFTEHR
BERGZABE REME2ERERNG
A ERKTAMSTT (T —NE
BWET74,4407T) »

P S 2 ) 2 B o BB
AR ERR KA 8 RS - EH
BARARETASBN —ELHIAR
IRTE IR B A B BRI - AR BB
RAE R 8400 — AT R AR AR
R 8

Bi 1%\

EFTRENDE-T—+F+ -7
=t—AL(ZF-AE+ZA=t-
B 48) R E RS -

SRER(EE)
RERMEERDRLEE XS

BREAREERF (EEB) IR
BAEBEHEARGRAFERNNE
#31,266,000L (ZZE —~F . B8
%976 #4,331,0000T ) R AN F BB 1T
1,712,329, 142 BB (Z T — < F :
1,712,329,142% @A ) 51 & -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

No diluted earnings/(loss) per share has been presented as
there were no diluting events existing for both years.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Earnings/(loss) figures are calculated as follows:

16.

FREFN(BR)
A S R AL R

HRAEEBEE T —+tFN_T—X
FREBEATMEERGD FE R E
27 SREEREF S (EE) -

ARAEBANEBERFERCEXH 2B
BEAREERN, (BR)ZAEHE
R T5IEUE

&R,/ (B8R BEE T AGE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to REERAGHEEA
owners of the Company fEEET, (EE) 31,266 (4,331)
Add: hn
Loss for the year from discontinued FABERILEEET
operation &5 18 - 1,628
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and ~ AR T EHFE K&
diluted earnings per share from EBsEBRAXR
continuing operation BEAF, (BiE) 31,266 (2,703)
Number of shares RHEHE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
’000 000
Fr Tt
Number of Ordinary shares for the purpose of AR+ E &K
basic earnings per share BERABNZ
TRk B A 1,712,329 1,712,329

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both the basic and diluted earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no dilutive
earnings per share has been presented as the exercise of the
convertible bonds would have an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings per share.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

17. REYWE

In the PRC In Hong Kong
held under held under
medium-term medium-term
leases leases Total
REAESEZ REBEEZ
hEIA A RHEA L H
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T
FAIR VALUE OF REVEZDAE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
As at 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H 204,666 117,597 322,263
Transferred to property, BT
plant and equipment &7 & - (79,097) (79,097)
Exchange difference 0N E R (13,249) - (13,249)
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-—RF
and 1 January 2017 +t-A=+-HEK
“E-t%-8F—-H 191,417 38,500 229,917
Additions NE 5,991 - 5,991
Disposals HE - (19,000) (19,000)
Increase in fair value ERGEBRRRER
recognised in profit or loss N EEN 1,094 - 1,094
Exchange difference fEHZERE 14,523 - 14,523
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZZFE—+F
+ZHA=+—H 213,025 19,500 232,525

AEBEFRAREARDE S HEEAE
BERZZYMEERGARAEEANG
B YHBERARRREME-

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

HEWE  BREE RS %213,025,000
T (=T — 7R F B #191,417,0007T)
EEBUERETASE 2 —fRIIRI1TRL
BRI

The carrying amount of investment properties amounting to
HK$213,025,000 (2016: HK$191,417,000) has been pledged
to secure general banking facilities and mortgage loans to the
Group.

BREMER_T—+F+=A=1+—H
HEEEHEMBHEERBERTR
HAAMEEFEEI R RAFEE
fth B #4785 1,094,000 E 5T A 4R & 18
BR(ZE—RNF )

Investment properties were revalued at their open market value
at 31 December 2017 by Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers
Ltd., an independent firm of professional valuers, on an open
market value basis. The valuation gave rise to a revaluation
surplus of HK$1,094,000 (2016: Nil), which has been
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWXE (#)

Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd is a member of
the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

There has been changes from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties were classified under level
3 of the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 with
significant unobservable inputs while the investment properties
were classified under level 2 with significant observable inputs
of the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016. Therefore,
there was a transfer out of level 2 during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Level 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is unobservable.

Fair value Valuation
Hierarchy Techniques

MAEER MAEFR

Commercial unit Level 3 Direct comparison Estimated market unit sale price
located in Hong Kong E= method per square feet

MRERZEEEM BEERRE REMEENETHREE

Commercial units Level 3 Direct comparison Estimated market unit sales price
located in PRC E= method per square feet

AP EL 2 B % B EERRE BEMEENETHRER
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BEAERRETRBEAGLEMSZES
B UYHERBEERNMEOHNERML
EEEELUYMEZER - BRAGEDE
RERGEEEIRZZEUNER ST
BRET-

EFEERAZBEIAEFABES-
EHEMENARER  BAERYE
MRm R&ERE-

R_T—+tF+_A=+—H, £%H
ZHREMEWSIBEAARBELNE=
TEREEFNS RE AR 2 HIE -
R_E—RNF+_A=Z+—B ££H
ZREMEWSERAANBEERNE
WANEEF W RATBR 2 HIE - AT
INAEBHBERE R

THRARMNMNGIERENE L ARE
Erb (BRI2EmEFERERAZBA
B) UERBREBEAAEHUBREENE
EARBHEFEAAESREE (F
=) e

Relationship of unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs to fair value

TERNBEC YR

EUBRZHBRAAENER

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale
price would result in an increase/ decrease
in the fair value of the property

MEEMHEEEREN/ RS TERNE
RAEENR D

The increase/decrease in the market unit sale
price would result in an increase/ decrease
in the fair value of the property

MEEMEEEREN RS TERNE
AAEEMNR D



18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

18. % HWERRE

2017 —E-—+tF
Furniture
Land and equipment
Hotel Buildings and
property inHK and  Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
&
RREREZ REERYE RER BER
BRENE REZEBT EEIR BFLB He AE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
COST AND VALUATION AR fh{E
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—-A—H 112,000 113,126 314 45,399 16,086 3,125 290,050
Additions RE 4,408 1,212 4,752 15,234 17,267 - 42,873
Transfer EE - - (987) 987 - - -
Disposals and write off & R - - - (20,605) (14,985) - (35,590)
Deficit on revaluation ey (1,408) - - - - - (1,408)
Exchange difference EHER - 2,574 74 3,684 1,929 95 8,356
At 31 December 2017~ RZF—+F
TZA=+-H 115,000 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 304,281
Comprising: 2
At cost KA - 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 189,281
At valuation - 2017 fhi-
“E—+tf 115,000 - - - - - 115,000
115,000 116,912 4,153 44,699 20,297 3,220 304,281
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 j e e
—-R—-H - 2,965 - 25,854 13,875 3,002 45,696
Provided for the year  FEEE 4,226 3,130 = 2,789 296 115 10,556
Eliminated on disposals % tH& R i85
and write off i - - - (19,973) (14,079) - (34,052)
Eliminated on revaluation 7 & B i3 (4,226) - - - - - (4,226)
Exchange difference EHER - 145 - 1,935 1,062 85 3,227
At 31 December 2017  RZE—+t#
+ZA=+-A - 6,240 o 10,605 1,154 3,202 21,201
CARRYING VALUES RERE
At31 December 2017  R-ZT—+#
+ZA=1+-8 115,000 110,672 4,153 34,094 19,143 18 283,080
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HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ -BERRE (2)
(Continued)
2016 —E-RF
Furniture
Land and equipment
Hotel Buildings and
property in HK and Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
i
RBEREZ  REERTE Rk BE R
EENZ BEZRT ERIR BFRE He "E 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETTL BETT BETT BETT BETTL BETT

COST AND VALUATION RARfEfE

At 1 January 2016 RZE-RE
—-A—-H 112,000 47,944 1,716 38,013 17,095 3,214 219,982
Additions RE - - 313 11,186 90 - 11,589
Transferred from BRARANE
investment properties - 79,097 - - - - 79,097
Transfer 2 - - (1,604) 1,604 - - -
Disposals and write off & R - (11,560) - (1,532) - - (13,092)
Exchange difference ELER - (2,355) (1) (3,872) (1,099) (89) (7,526)

At 31 December 2016~ RZE—1&

+-A=1+-H 112,000 113,126 314 45,399 16,086 3,125 290,050
Comprising: B
At cost KA - 113,126 314 45,399 16,086 3,125 178,050
At valuation - 2016 fhiE-
ZE-RE 112,000 - - - - - 112,000
112,000 113,126 314 45,399 16,086 3,125 290,050
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 January 2016 RZE-RE
-A—H - 988 - 25,878 13,993 2,870 43,729
Provided for the year EEAE 4,072 2,843 - 3,014 825 203 10,957
Eliminated on disposals % H & ki 55
and write off 8 - (794) - (1,414) - - (2,208)
Exchange difference ELER - (72) - (1,624) (943) (71) 2,710)
Eliminated on revaluation 1 & B i 3 (4,072) - - - - - (4,072)
At 31 December 2016 R=ZF—<%
+-A=1+-H - 2,965 - 25,854 13,875 3,002 45,696

CARRYING VALUES BEFE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R
+-A=1t-H 112,000 110,161 314 19,545 2,211 123 244,354
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s buildings

The Group's hotel property situated in the PRC was valued
on 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 by Associated
Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd., an independent valuer not
related to the Group.

The fair value of the buildings were determined based on the
market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties, adjusted for differences in the
nature, location and condition of the buildings under review.
There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

There has been changes from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. The Group’s hotel property was classified under
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 with
significant unobservable inputs while the hotel property was
classified under level 2 with significant observable inputs of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016. Therefore, there
was a transfer out of level 2 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

If the hotel property had not been revalued, if would have
been included in these financial statements at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation of HK$66,870,000 (2016:
HK$65,062,000).

Fair value Valuation
Hierarchy Techniques Significant unobservable inputs
AREER  RHESR EX:3 P8 394 ¢

Combination of
direct comparison
method and income

Hotel property in PRC Level 3
RABEZBENSE E=8

18. ¥ -MEKZE 2

EEET D AEN R

REBURFBEZBEMER_T—+
Ft+ZA=FT—HBERZZE—R"F+=A
= t+—HHBLEEGEMBEGEER
WMETREAAMEENEE

BEMZ ARERRBEEEMSLES
o BBROIRRZER YERMUE 12
FRASEERZUEL AR FAZ
EET AL EEE -

TFEFERZHEEANEFREZE-
RZE—tF+=A=+—0H, A5H
ZBEEMERSERALBEERNE=
THRREEA NS REUER 2 HE -
R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—H0 X4&H
ZBEEMERSERALBEERNE=
TR EEF RS RATBR 2 8& - T
INARFHEEBERE M-

REAMEZRARER VEZERS
RFZBEDNREZREGEE-

fied I % B ROF E W 3 BIEIE W) X8 1%
JEE st Bk AR 3T & 7% 8 %66,870,0007T
Z T — X% : B ¥%65,062,0007T ) 5 A
e MBWmEK-

Relationship of unobservable inputs

to fair value

BUBRCYBEEAAENEE

Estimated marketunit rent per square  The increase/decrease in the market unit
feet and estimated market unit sales
price per square feet

rent and the increase/decrease in the
market unit

capitalisation method ~ E=tHENET A REERETS THEMMAR/LHEBREM/HDT

BREEERRA
ERfEda

BiETHRER

EENENTEEN/ WD
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19.

REBE QTR

Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as follows: REEREERARERFBERIGOT
Nanhai
Guangdong Changhai
Financial Power
Leasing Company
Co., Ltd Limited Total Total
ERER HERE
MEHE BE
BRAF BRAF st st
2017 2017 2017 2016
—E—tF —E—tF —E—t& —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT B¥T T B¥TT BB
Initial cost of investments BEHENE KA
in associates
Unlisted JEET 191,977 485,042 677,019 677,019
Less: Distribution from R 2 R E AR
pre-acquisition profit - (143,562) (143,562) (143,562)
191,977 341,480 533,457 533,457
Share of post-acquisition profits R ER BT 55,044 181,873 236,917 161,423
Share of exchange differences EREN S (5,718) (19,085) (24,803) (74,493)
241,303 504,268 745,571 620,387

Details of each the Group’s material associates at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Form of the
Entity Name entity
BB -1 37

Guangdong Financial  Incorporated
Leasing Co.,Ltd

EREMBERE  ERAT
BEBRRE

Nanhai Changhai Incorporated
Power Company
Limited

HEREEE iRl
BRAR

Place of
incorporation

gk

The PRC

TEARANE

The PRC

TEARLNER

Principal place
of operation

TEEERE

The PRC

TEARLNER

The PRC

TEARLNER

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 5 Jit 45 fR 2 5]
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Proportion of

RBERRAEESEKR

LIRNE

Proportion of

NGRS

Class of ownership interest voting rights
shares held held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
¥4
FERERE AEBMfE
Fris R0 8 R [ $:3:4]] SRELH TEXH
Ordinary 25% 25% Finance leasing business
and related advisory
and guarantee services
BBk SREESXBRABRSD
RERRE
Ordinary 32.636% 32.636% Generation and sale of
electricity and heated
steam
BBk BHETRAAME
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REFE A RIER (&)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd

BRAASESEERBERAZHBER
BMEHINMT -UTHBENREZT
RBERRZMBRRZEE  BRR
BEMBHRELERIGRES

FrBZEHE RR NI 56 MR
KAERREAAR-

ERENBEHREERAF

2017 2016
ZE—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T AT

Current assets mEEE 2,078,057 1,185,626
Non-current assets EMEBEE 2,739,712 2,395,519
Current liabilities MENBE (1,201,146) (699,069)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (2,478,007) (1,893,538)
Net asset value BEFE 1,138,616 988,538
2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Revenue g 265,965 209,826
Profit for the year FRNEF 66,537 62,670
Exchange differences for the year FHERZRR 64,295 (55,574)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREE RSB 130,832 7,096
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
+E+=-HA=+—HIL¥E Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19.

Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd (Continued)

REtE NRIRER (&)

EREBNBEAEARAA (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to RERAEHRR PR 2 A AR
the carrying amount of the interests in the associate recognised BR TE (B B L B 75 R L Y B
in the consolidated financial statements:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Net assets of the associate RN Zﬁ%@ﬁ 1,138,616 988,538
Non-controlling interest of the Bk & N A 2 FEFE AR
associate’s subsidiary = (173,404) (154,158)
965,212 834,380
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests in ZF;‘%EQE%%@’H
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd REMHEARA
RS 15
A X 25% 25%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in TEBRERER
Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd BEHERR AR
w2 BREAE 241,303 208,595
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited EERBRERRLA
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Current assets mEEE 978,943 669,576
Non-current assets EREBEE 879,475 903,480
Current liabilities nREBE (313,290) (311,285)
Net asset value BEFE 1,545,128 1,261,771
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT AT I
Revenue U =% 1,275,128 1,022,321
Profit for the year FAEF 180,351 159,577
Exchange differences for the year FNE HE5R 103,006 (83,903)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEE RSB 283,357 75,674
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10. R E N EIRER (2)

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited (Continued) EEREREARAT (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to NMEE B EmEAPERBME R AERZ
the carrying amount of the interests in the associate recognised AR TH B B2 _E it B 75 28 R A it S5 B

in the consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016

—E—+t5F —T—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Net assets of the associate BERNRlcEEEE 1,545,128 1,261,771
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests in $;‘%lﬁffﬁ'§/§/
Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited BEBRAFZ
A RERERTL

AoX 32.636% 32.636%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in AEEREERE

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited BEEAMRAT]
a2 REE 504,268 411,792

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. AIftHESR&EE

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Investment, at cost RE REAR 9,172 8,527
Movement of available-for-sale financial asset is analysed as AHEESREENES MW T

follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

At the beginning of the year ) 8,527 9,117

Exchange differences N Z= 645 (590)

At the end of the year BiR 9,172 8,527

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED i[5 B 3% 35 3 47 bR 23 %]
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4F#t

147



Aok B 25 R PR

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

20. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. At HESREE (&)

21.

22.

(Continued)

The above equity investments represent investments in equity
securities issued by private entities in the PRC. It is measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period as
there are no sufficient market comparables and the Directors
of the Company are of the opinion that its fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale are stated at net realisable value. They
are held under medium-term lease in the PRC.

The cost of properties held for sale occurred and recognised as
expenses during the year is HK$7,208,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

21.

BRI JE AR A R A e B ST 2
BEBBIHRAES - mIOEERH
FIB LB RHE B A BUEE AR
EFRBEAAEETE LRI
BRI 1 R 25 SR A B AR AL
HE-

HEU=

HEWE AT B IEED R R EY
£ 73 B b ek BB 05

HIE—ZT—ttF+_A=+—HLHF
B -HRARI YA AKRARZFEDE
BN A8 7,208,000 ( ZF — /N4
7)o

INVENTORIES 22. 78
2017 2016
—E— & —E—RXF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At Cost 2%
Food, beverages and hotel supplies B OB OB IE
& m 494 781

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in
cost of sales amounts to HK$5,551,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$11,373,000).

The Directors considered the provision for inventory
obsolescence is not required. (2016: Nil).
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BHEZZ—+tF+=ZA=+—HLHF
B HRRRAIUFAEERRAZFE
A BB H5,551,0007T (—Z — /N 4F
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FEFERERE(ZT—RF &) -
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The Group allows an average credit period of
90 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables after deducting the allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting

23. FEU AR H b B WK IR

B EPBEABLENRI REBEHE
BEPZRZBERIENEEET A&
BHETPHEFTFHORZEER-

AEERHEPRREZRAHZEI
FEUR R (B MRRB ) 2 Bk 0 A7
LIRNE

period:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
0-60 days 0£60H 799 1,160
61-90 days 61£90H 163 140
91-120 days 91£120H 51 128
Over 120 days HBiE120H 79 180
Trade receivables JE Uk BR 5k 1,092 1,608

Other receivables B W B &
SCEDEN 6,834 4,879
7,926 6,487

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The Group’s largest trade receivables balance was amounting
to HK$510,000 (2016: HK$166,000) at the end of the year.
Four (2016: two) other trade receivables balance represented
more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables and
amounted to HK$956,000 (2016: HK$195,000).

At as 31 December 2017, trade receivables over 90 days
amounting to HK$130,000 (2016: HK$308,000) were past due
but not impaired as the balance were related to debtors with
sound repayment history and no recent history of default.

AN B L% S AR TR
KE MR FEE R

AEBZEAEREREH BB
510,0007¢ (=& — /X : % %166,000
TLIHAZR(ZE—ARF -WMB) £ EY
BR A R G 42 R85 % A | - T R URBR FRAS
B 4858 578 #5956,0007T ( =T — /N4
7 #195,0007T ) °

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H #iBPO
H & & Uk BR 30 & B8 %130,0007T (=
T — N4 B #308,0000T ) AE HiE B
RABRER AR RT 2 5 ae ek oA 5
B30 R GE 8, - L R R E -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not

23. FEU AR H b B WK IR

(%)

BHMEROB(E 2 YR KA BR e a0 T

impaired:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
91-120 days 91%120H 51 128
Over 120 days Hi@120H 79 180
130 308
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: RRBEE S -
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Balance at the beginning of the year REIE & 241 255
Impairment recognised on receivables B EURIE R
B 254 2
Impairment written back on receivables BEWRIBZ
BB [ % (14) -
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses M FE 5, 2 &5 17 (16)
Balance at the end of the year RERER 498 241

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables over 120 days
approximately amounting to HK254,000 (2016: HK$2,000)
were impaired and fully provided for.
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23.

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for
whom there was no recent history of default. The Directors
considered that the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximates their fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

ok BV 255 A B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

(#)

23. FEU AR H b B WK IR

2R 380 2 B AR Ol (B8 ) 7 M B K e L A B LK
IR 2 PR B B 3T 331 B 46 R A
NHROEBAEB - EFTRS BUEE
RAREMERFA REEEERE

GEEEK

RMITHBRRRE BEART

N

(@ RERASEEVWERE:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRIB &R 179,884 54,014
Short-term bank deposit 5 ERRITIF 3K 617,879 96,183
Short-term liquid investment HEREIRE 153,061 -
950,824 151,097

Less: pledged bank deposit B EEBIRITER 63,963 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEEY 886,861 151,097

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the
Group, short-term bank deposits and short-term liquid
investment with an original maturity dates of three months
or less and cash equivalents.

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in the Hong Kong and the PRC, and the
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances
ranged from 0.79% to 4.05% per annum in Hong Kong
and 1.43% to 1.95% per annum in the PRC. (2016:
0.01% to 1.76% per annum in Hong Kong and 0.3% to
1.95% in PRC).

RITEHRMR S BRASEMER
SRREHMAR=ZEAIIATH
CHIRTTEALERRPIRE

RITHEBRDEEERTEHZSEN
GRAEG B MASEIRITER
MERFFNEERTENTO7IES
4.05F LR BN F1.43FE£1.95
E(ZZ—XRF:EZH5 5N F0.01
[EZE1.76F - £FEH N F0.03E=

1.95[E) o
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24, BITHEBRRE CEHET
FR#)

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued)

Pledged bank deposit represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$63,963,000
(2016: Nil) have been pledged to secure a bank
borrowing.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

(a)

RERREEEYERE: (&)

BHEFRITEFIEEIR TIRIT AR
SERTAEERITREZFR L
7 #563,963,0007T ( ZFE — /R F -
BONTEREEARITEHENE
- EAEkDERRBEE-

RITEBRLA S REERRTHE
RHBRE S RIA NI EHEHE:

2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT I

Hong Kong Dollars odesd 56,440 24,220
Renminbi AR 250,944 110,206
United States Dollars ETT 579,477 16,671
886,861 151,097

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank
balances with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$250,944,000 (2016: HK$110,206,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible
currency in the international market. The government of
the PRC has implemented foreign exchange control and
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
exchange restrictions imposed by the government of the
PRC.
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

24, BITHEBRRE CEHET
FR#)

b) RMEFHFELNAEHK

activities
Convertible

Borrowings notes Total
(R JHEREE Hr
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
B F T BT BT
At 1 January 2017 N—E—+tF—H—H 136,383 121,092 257,475
Proceeds from borrowings EEMBRIE 674,801 - 674,801
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (10,441) - (10,441)
Interest paid BB - (3,325) (3,325)
800,743 117,767 918,510
Exchange adjustment b i = 78 9,520 - 9,520
Interest expense FMEBFAX - 17,819 17,819

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-—A=+—H 810,263 135,586 945,849

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ENBRAREMESRE

The credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers ranges from

30 days to 90 days.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
payables based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting

AEBERTHERZEEHNFI0RE
90H -

AEERBERR REZTAMETZ
FERBRRZRE DTN

period:
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
0-60 days 0Z60H 615 1,177
61-90 days 61Z90H 302 120
91-120 days 91Z120H - 101
Over 120 days BiE120H 89 168
Trade payables FERBRR 1,006 1,566
Other payables H b JE T 5RI8 129,846 109,138
130,852 110,704
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuead)

Other payables included the following items:

25. BBRRREMBEMNKE

(%)

Hit B RIERIETHIER :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Other tax payables H b fE T B I8 11,412 8,946
Payable on convertible notes and ERATBmREERR
interest payable (Note 1) B 2 FET IR
(H¥3E1) 78,819 78,819
Others (Note 2) H Aty (P 5E2) 39,615 21,373
129,846 109,138
Notes: B 5 -

1 On 9 May 2002, the Group issued HK$230,000,000 convertible
notes (the “2002 CB”) which were due on 9 May 2007 (the
“Maturity Date”), bearing interest at 1% per annum and in
units of HK$1,000,000 each. As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, the balance of HK$75,000,000 2002 CB were due
but not converted. Such principal monies together with all
interest accrued thereon up to Maturity Date, amounting to
HK$3,819,000 (2016: HK$3,819,000), were reclassified as other
payables and become repayable on demand.

2 Others include accrued staff salaries and welfare, deposits
received from hotel customers and other temporary receipts.

The Directors considered that the carrying amount of trade
and other payable approximates their fair value. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
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1., R-ZET_FhAAA AEEH
17 7 #230,000,0007T 2 7] # f% = 4
([2002F #IREHE]) BIHBE A=
TTZHFRANA ([RHE]) FE
B1E - 813 7% #1,000,00070 ° i =
E—tFR_ZT—RF+_A=+—
H  # %% #75,000,0007T 22002
AREEEERSHERE AR -BH
AeERBEAZISHBZAENE
753,819,000 (Z T — N F A%
3,819,0007T ) & %1  ¥8 /% H fth F& 1< 5
B R B SR EE -

2. HuBREFEIHFSREMN EEE
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EERR AEENEMERREME
NRBEZEEEEEALERE K&
B 2 5 E B A% A B B IR EUR  ARER AT
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BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

26. BORROWINGS 26. B
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank loans RITEE 680,647 136,383
Loan from an associate BENR 2 ERK 39,616 -
Loan from immediate holding company EEERARIZER 90,000 -
810,263 136,383
Secured SR 680,647 136,383
Unsecured 44K 129,616
810,263 136,383
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount repayable: FEEZERRE(E
Within one year —F A 624,298 36,004
More than one year, but not exceeding tBiE—F1E
two years B B R 24,010 22,322
More than two years, but not more than B 1B B
five years AN EF 126,014 27,902
More than five years a8 T 35,941 50,155
810,263 136,383
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities BAARBBEZ
KIE 624,298 36,004
185,965 100,379

During the year, the Group settled loans amounting to
HK$10,441,000.

On 12 April 2017, the Group obtained a one-year short-
term loan amounting to RMB33,000,000 from the Group’s
associate, Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited, which is
unsecured with a fixed interest rate at 2.6% per annum.

RAFE AEBDERBETERAS
#10,441,0007T °

RZZE—tFMNA+ =B AEEM
AEEBMERAREEREEEARD
ARBSAM—FNRHEERARKE
33,000,0007T ZER AEEA  BE
FEREBFE2.6% -
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26. BORROWINGS (continued)

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year loan
amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s immediate
holding company, Prize Rich Inc. which is unsecured with a
fixed interest rate at 3% per annum.

On 6 December 2017, the Group’s has obtained a loan facility
from a bank of approximately USD110,090,000 for which a
controlling shareholder has provided the necessary corporate
guarantee. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has draw-
down an amount of USD70,000,000.

According to HK Int 5, which requires the classification of
whole instalment loans containing the repayment on demand
clause as current liabilities, the aggregate carrying amount of
HK$572,677,000 (2016: HK$27,075,000) has been classified
from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as at 31
December 2017.

Bank loans of HK$680,647,000 (2016: HK$136,383,000) are
secured by the Group’s investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$323,697,000 (2016:
HK$301,578,000) which are situated at Block 1 of Guangdong-
Hongkong Finance & Technology Park, 6 Jinke Road, Guicheng
Street, Nanhai District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC and Unit 01, 14 and 15 on 5th Floor, Wing On Plaza,
No. 62 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong respectively and
a pledged bank deposit amounting to HK$63,963,000. The
weighted average effective rate on the bank loans is from
2.083% to 6.15% (2016: from 2.11% to 6.15%) per annum and
repayable within ten years.

The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying
amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The fair
values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based
on the borrowing rate of 2.08% (2016: 2.11%) and are within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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R-ZZE—+F+-_ARE AEFREAK
£ B 7 B A 0 Prize Rich Inc., B
15 A H = F /7% %90,000,0007T E
ZEFABEEMR BEEMNERBTFEI% -

R-ZZE—+FE+-A B KXEEM
$R 77 EN /5 £7110,090,000% 7T B B 7 &t
B XZRFAHEERBEVERNAE
ReBEZZT—+tF+=HA=+—8"
R £ [E B 2 8170,000,0003 T & 7 @t
& o

BREESTEESR (ERESHRE
KEBGRAZ A THERSEARD
B8E) BHEZT—+tFt+=ZA=+—
H ZIERBEFELNAEKS72,677,000
T(ZEBE—RE+-A=+—8 B
27,075,0007T) BFEEARE BE -

B 1R IR 17 B 3% %680,647,0007T
(ZZF— /X7 :7%%136,383,0007T) A
REBZREMERYE BEREZE
(AL B ERE ML T8 R ERE
BeRRBRoORESSHMEETIERES
KO EXLEIHS5E0T - 14R16F )&
H 4978 1323,697,0007T ( —F— /N4
75 #301,578,0007T ) K1 - K B IR
1717 3% 575 #63,963,0007T < R 1T &
ZMEFHERFEF K A2.03EE6.15
E(ZZ—XF:2.11E=6.15FE) ' I
EETHFREER-

HRMRZYETAER RBAEN
AABEEEREHERE ARNBEERESE
BEFEFE208% (ZT— X NF:2.11%)
LEBIRIRSREE BEBRARES
BE MR-
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27.
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BORROWINGS (continuea)

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following

26. B (&)

AREBEZEFRAMTHEEHE:

currencies:

2017 2016
—2—t% —EAHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong Dollars ok 115,851 27,075
Renminbi AR 147,586 109,308
United States Dollars E 546,826 -
810,263 136,383

CONVERTIBLE NOTES 27. TR EE

On 9 May 2002, the Group issued HK$230,000,000 convertible
notes (the “2002 CB”) which were due on 9 May 2007 (the
“Maturity Date”), bearing interest at 1% per annum and in
units of HK$1,000,000 each. As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, the balance of HK$75,000,000 2002 CB were due
but not converted. Such principal monies together with all
interest accrued thereon up to maturity date, amounting to
HK$3,819,000 (2016: HK$3,819,000), were reclassified as
other payables and become repayable on demand.

R-ZZBEZE-_FRANLA AEEHETE
#230,000,0007T AJ #2 % E & ([20027]
BEREER]) - BEER-_ZEZTLFAHA
NA(THHEB]RE  ZERE1ER
B R EEAN A K1,000,0007T A=
T+ FRZE-ARF+ZA=+—
H - % %85 #75,000,0007T #92002 7]
BREEEBAH BREBR -ZEFER
CHERBZIHAMEREANER
JE 13,819,000 (ZF — R F B K
3,819,0007T) * E¥TH A A HEMER K
B0 SR EE -
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

On 13 October 2014, the Company issued convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 (the “2014 CB”)
(of which its fair value at the issuance date was approximately
HK$129,270,000) as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Southern Limited. The 2014 CB bears coupon
rate at 2% per annum and are convertible into shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.76 per share at any
time following the third anniversary of the issue date up to
the maturity date on 13 October 2019. At any time prior to
the maturity date of the 2014 CB, the Company is entitled to
redeem in whole or in part of the 2014 CB. Unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the 2014
CB will be redeemed on the maturity date on 13 October
2019. The 2014 CB carries interest at a rate of 2% per annum,
which is payable annually in arrears or upon the conversion or
redemption of the bonds.

27. A REE (&)

RZZE—MF+A+=H ARFET
7N 4 %8 A5 166,232,000 (E A
BEREITAY AB1129,270,0007T) 2
A EE ([20147] R ZE ) 1B A
WHEMABRA R ZEMHRIE - 20147]
BRERIEFEBR2% B RN
“RFRAMNKEEZSIHA =S A
FHA+=BHERE®REGREYE
0.76 T B AN A E I ) FR2014 7 14
BREERF A REMERE AARBE
fE Ol 2 Z k20D 2014 7] AR 4% - BR 3F
LERIEERE BIREE ki A
20147 R EHR B R EIBA T —NF
+A+Z=RHEER - 20147 A% =5 Thi%
FRHEROEF B FEBFHARERER
o FE 3] B ST AT o

The convertible notes contain two components, liability and AR EREEMRLY —BERERS
equity components. The equity component is presented in Do AN 2R ERIE T 2 ] B
equity under heading “convertible note equity reserve’. The EBRFE- BRI RERHLIHERE
values of the liability component and the equity conversion RETELFKET
component were determined at the issuance of the notes.
Liability
component
=R
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE-—XRF—-—HA—H 108,467
Interest charged calculated at an effective BRERFE1416EAE 2 FIEFAX
interest rate of 14.16% 15,950
Interest paid 2RALE (3,325)
At 31 December 2016 and R-B-R"F+=ZA=+—-BR
1 January 2017 —F—t&—-A—H 121,092
Interest charged calculated at an effective BEBRFE1416EHE 2 F R E
interest rate of 14.16% 17,819
Interest paid SRR RN (3,325)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZF—tHF+=-A=+—H 135,586
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes
is calculated using cash flows discounted at market interest
rate of 14.16% (2016: 14.16%) and is within Level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

27. A REE (&)

AHREEEEREDS, 2 AN ENKR
14.16% (ZZF—NF :14.16% ) 2 5
MEFBRZ2ESRENE BEBRAR
BERE o

28. IE IR

UTARERMBEFEZCHERBEL
MEREIREES:

Undistributed

profits of

an associate

BeENR 2

RAOBEBR

HK$’000

BT T

At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H 9,109

Credit to profit or loss FTAE = 2,050

Exchange difference b i ERR (681)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=-ZF—XF+=-A=+—-HR

—E2—-tF—HF—H 10,478

Credit to profit or loss FFAEE 4,265

Exchange difference ME W Z 5 972

At 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF+=HA=+—H 15,715

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

VAN BRI TR AE B 2 0 4T LA 1E B 755 R

financial reporting purposes: WA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBAE 15,715 10,478

No deferred tax has been provided in respect of the valuation
surplus relating to the hotel property for the year as the
carrying amount does not exceed the total investment cost
and the Directors considered that there is no taxable flow of

economic benefits to the Group.

AEEHERBEENERBZAERR
SHRIEER I - BB E Y ¥ 6 R EE
VEBBEAREBEREETAREAEE
= I B A AR R s
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continuea)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$34,672,000 (2016: HK$19,644,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of that tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law dependent
upon the nationality and domicile of the foreign investors, a
5% to 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has become
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.

As at 31 December 2017, the unrecognised deferred tax
liabilities were approximately HK$18,000 (2016: approximately
HK$16,700), relating to withholding tax that would be
payable for undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries, as the
Directors consider that the timing for reversal of the related
temporary differences can be controlled and such temporary
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future. The
total undistributed profits of theses PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$180,000
(2016: approximately HK$167,000).

With regard to the Group’s investment properties, as none of
them is held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale,
the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of the investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on disposal of its investment
properties.
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RBEHR AEBEEARBEEBEA
V5 #534,672,0007 (= — RF B
19,644,000t ) A $8 7K 2K 5 K o B3 7 K
RETRRIR A R AR E - WER EllFIE
BEERREHREEE -

BEREREREEE IR ES
BB EE I (T BT - A2 P B A R S B SR
BECETTIR FPINRIZEEEMNR B S
B % Z10% EHAMEH ZREEZ
EENF-A—HAMARBRR-_ZZE
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PBEESEAME B E B 2 AAERE D FE]
MRS HE MERER BN
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R_Z—tF+_A=+—H0 Kx®ER
REIEFIE B &4 &5 118,0007T (=
T—NF:HB¥16,7000T) c BREH
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167,0007T) °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Number of shares Share Capital
BAEE B A
2016 2017 2016
—E—t& —E-RF —E—tE —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Authorised: EERA -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREBEEE0ITZ
Limi 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EE#TRHERE -
At beginning of year and YRR
the end of year 1,712,329,142 1,712,329,142 171,233 171,233

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013
(the “New Scheme”).

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
participants for their contribution or future contribution to the
Group and to strengthen the many long-term relationships that
the participants may have with the Group. Eligible participants
means any person falling within any of the following classes (a)
any employee; (b) any business associate of the Company or
any subsidiary; (c) any other groups or classes of participants
which the Board, in its absolute discretion, considers having
contributed or will contribute, whether by way of business
alliance or other business arrangements, to the development
and growth of the Group. The New Scheme became effective
on 26 April 2013 and, will remain in force for 10 years.

ARTBRER-F—=FMA=TAA
2172 REBF AR LR — R
B (T3ta))

AEIEERARRREEE A BT
SEESE BE R BER K
Mt AREEEFH A REFE L KK IE
BB/ ARZE2EERAEE 2
RERMBR REES2REZER
AR BEEEREREAENBERS
REZEBEEER ERE2EEHAE
BrEREARAKRERMERZS EER
AEBEZERBERZLEE -FEER
/,\%%EALATEH—J (EERIPAESCIPN
T (@RS ()RR R SIS
RAZEAEBHEAN: E=ZE2#
[RICEAYSIRE <RSP ekt 1=
HEBLHEAEEZ #RERE
HEBZ EEmAR KRR 2 EE -
aJr FR—_FT—=FWA=-FTRBEXN
WRZBETFRBR-
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10 per cent of the total number of shares in issues as
at the date of adoption of the New Scheme (i.e. 118,832,914
Shares of the Company) unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from the shareholders.

No option shall be granted to any participant such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to such participant
under the New Scheme and any other option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant shall exceed 1 per cent. of the total number of
shares in issue.

Under the Scheme, where the Board proposes to grant any
option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to him or her under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant; (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1 per cent. of the total
number of shares in issue; and (i) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such proposed grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting with all connected persons of the Company
abstaining from voting (except that any connected persons may
vote against the relevant resolution at such general meeting
provided that his intention to do so is stated in the circular
to the shareholders of the Company). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer, duly signed by the grantee with the number of
share in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within 1 month from the offer date.

The subscription price of share options granted under the New
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant in the offer letter and shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (b) a
price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30 per cent. (or
such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

No option has been granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption.

30. BRREFE (&)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

31.

The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company that has material non-controlling

FERES

TRHEIIANR AR EAFZE DA
FREEBMBRRNFFE:

interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of
and principal ownership interests voting right held by Profit/(loss) allocated Accumulated
Name of place of held by non-controlling non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary business interests interests interests interests
A
BERTE FERER I FERESR FERER
WRARER BENY FERRERLA FifsREREL A EERR/ (F8) RitFERER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tf ZE-RE —E-tf ZE-RF —E-tF ZE-RE —E-tf% ZE-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BB BETR BB
Guangdong Yibaiian  PRC 30% - 30% - (1,747) - (547) -
Comprehensive
Health Technology
Ltd*
ERSAERAER SEARLNE
BERERAE
Guangdong Sino PRC 20% - 20% - 14 - 153,675 -
Rock Tyco
Construction
Co., Ltd.*
BERPEZHER  PEARLAE
BRAT
China Select Small ~ PRC 49% - 49% - - - 3,600 -

Hotel Union Limited
HERBEHH REARLAE
BRARA

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

subsidiaries that has a material non-controlling interests is

set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. All these

subsidiaries were set up in 2017, therefore, no comparative for

2016 is presented.
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology

Ltd (“Yibaijian”)

FERER (#2)

EREERARENEARAT ([EA
1)

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$’000
BT T
Current assets MENE E 5,649
Non-current assets EMEBEE 33
Current liabilities mEBE (1,904)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A RQ &S A
JE 5 7 2 4,325
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 2 (547)
Loss for the period BN B 1B (5,592)
Loss for the period attributable to: HAEBESBE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7F =N (3,915)
Non-controlling interests of Yibaijian =X E) =
PR A (1,677)
(5,592)
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continuead) 31. IEERER (&)
Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive Health Technology EREERABRENEERAT ([EE
Ltd (“Yibaijian”) (Continued) ®’1) (#)
2017
—E—+t5F
HK$’000
BT T
Other comprehensive expenses, B o e N -l G )
net of income tax:
Exchange difference arising on translation of & 5 4| 3 75 b5
foreign operations: EACERZE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NE]E7F =N (164)
Non-controlling interests of Yibaijian =L EN =
FEVERR B = (70)
(234)
Loss and comprehensive expenses HAZERAZERE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7F =N (4,079)
Non-controlling interests of Yibaijian X EN =
PR A (1,747)
(5,826)
Net cash outflow from operating activities L FEHRS
T EE (3,964)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KREEESRS
R R (33)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHIAS
MAE R 9,604
Net cash inflow ReRAFRE 5,607
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 31. FERER 2

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sino

BERFEENERERQAA([FER

Rock”) 1)
2017
—ZE—tF
HK$’000
BT T
Current assets MENE E 700,500
Current liabilities mEBE (78)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A RQ&HAE A
FEAE HE 2 546,747
Non-controlling interests JEPE R = 153,675
Loss for the period BN 18 (7,229)
Loss for the period attributable to: HAEBERE:
Owners of the Company KRABVHEER A (5,783)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERRZ
IR R = (1,446)
(7,229)
Other comprehensive expenses, Hpvira M-
net of income tax: briniz -
Exchange difference arising on translation of #8815 85
foreign operations: EAECENZHE:
Owners of the Company KRNBEE A 5,841
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERBZ
FEIE I an 1,460
7,301
Loss and comprehensive expenses HAEERE RS
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7F =N 58
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERBZ
FEPE IR M AR 14
72
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sino

Rock”) (Continued)

31.

IR ER (2)

BERFEENERERAA([FER
B (&)

2017
—ZE—tF
HK$’000
BT T
Net cash outflow from operating activities KETEERE
it T R (7,151)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEBHRS
A E R 700,350
Net cash inflow HEmAFRE 693,199
China Select Small Hotel Union Limited BERBEBHERAA
2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000
BT T
Current assets A E 9,720
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AKX &S A
FE1E s 6,120
Non-controlling interests FE 2 i A 2 3,600
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEFEES
TRAF R 9,720
Net cash inflow W mAFRE 9,720
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. 8 EMHNOZTH
The Group as lessor AEEBHBEBEEAA
The Group’s property rental income during the year was AEBRFAERESMERS ALY
approximately HK$6,373,000 (2016: HK$4,566,000). All of the 516,373,000 (ZZF—/RF | B
properties held have committed tenants to leases of 1 to 11 4,566,0007T) - TS D WER KK —
years (2016: 4 to 5 years). E+—F(ZE—R"F:NERF)HE
BEIHMEP -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REER AEBEEEHBPFTHZRK
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: =EE£0T
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Within one year R—FR 9,197 6,611
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEERF
(BREEMTF) 19,952 10,228
Over five years AFEMNE 11,955 3,757
41,104 20,596
33. COMMITMENTS 33. &L
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Commitments for the acquisition of BAYME BE K&
property, plant and equipment A 2 A 1,957 56
Commitments for the refurbishment of WEMEREZ
investment properties B AR - 584
Commitments for the investment cost of S F AR E KA
establishment of subsidiary B A EE 837,462 2,344
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

+E+=-HA=+—HIL¥E Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

34. PLEDGED OF ASSETS

35.

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged

to secure general banking facilities to the Group or borrowings

34. EEEH

BERNTHEREENEESERAERE

FTAEEN —RBITRENAEBNE

of the Group (see note 26): B (Mfsk26) :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Investment properties "EYE 213,025 191,417
Property, plant and equipment LERY S e 110,672 110,161
Pledged bank deposit 2HEARITER 63,963 -
387,660 301,578
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEER 5
A) On 1 May 2016, the Group entered into a rental A R-ZZE—RFRA—\B AEEHE
agreement for a period of 48 months at RMB19,000 BENTERENMEMERRA
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,900) per month with AR — M ERHZE AER481EA -
the Group’s associate, Guangdong Financial Leasing Co., T AMEEABARM19,000T (FAE
Ltd in which the Group received rental income amounting R B EE21,000L) Eff - A&
to approximately HK$251,000 (2016: HK$163,000). The [ 1 2N 1H & Y A 4978 #251,0007T
leased property is situated at Flat 301 and 302 of Phase (ZZ—/XF : %163,0007T) °
1 Guangdong Hong Kong Finance & Technology Park HEMFEMREREHILTEEE
Guicheng Street, Nanhai District Foshan City, Guangdong FEY 1 18 B8 © B R R B 301
Province, the PRC*. NB02FE* °
B) On 24 March 2017, the Group’s non-wholly owned B) R=ZZE—+tF=ZA=-+WMWA" 'K

subsidiary, Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive
Health Technology Ltd** (“Yibaijian”), entered into a
service agreement in a total amount of RMB3,729,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,291,000) with its non-
Ltd
in which Yibaijian paid Shenzhen

controlling interest, Shenzhen e-ling Info-Tech Co.,
(“Shenzhen e-ling”),
e-ling for Management of Comprehensive Elderly Care
Services in Nanhai district. During the period, the Group
had paid RMB3,524,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,059,000) to Shenzhen e-ling*.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T—

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

C)

D)

E)

+E+-A=+—HIE¥E For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. BEER 5 (&)

On 12 April 2017, the Group obtained one-year short- C) RIZE—+tHFWMA+=H £A&EHE
term loan amounting to RMB33,000,000 from the Group’s MEBRENA-EAEREEER
associate, Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited with RARE T —ERHERARE
a fixed interest rate at 2.6% per annum. 33,000,0007T * F 7 & £2.6%
R—FRNEFE -
On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year D) RZZE—+F+-—ARA HEMRA
loan amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s B2 A R —Prize Rich Inc.f&
immediate holding company, Prize Rich Inc. which 7 —Z 7% 1%90,000,0007T Ky = F
is unsecured and with a fixed interest rate at 3% per HEF FFEAE3% FBIRE
annum. - ReRIBHE —RERE-
Compensation of key management personnel E) XEEBASHMH
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key EENEMEFEERBAERTNR
management during the year is as follows: ZEAT
2017 2016
—E—+tF TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Short-term employee benefits MHEEERA 8,484 6,406
Post-employment employee benefits RKEERF 462 468
8,946 6,874

The remuneration of Directors and key management
personnel is proposed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

*

The transaction constituted an exempt connected
transaction under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

EENHMTIEZERABZHBH

HFMEZEs
IH R i 8 e

* ZRZIRIE LR

5o

%1I%|J)\:t2%%

B rE
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEME R T

ARAZEIEHBARAR - —LF

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation or

Issued and fully
paid ordinary

toASt—RzEENT:

registration/ share capital/ Percentage
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held  Principal activity
BBRTR
B BREBER
gt/ R/ t=20)
MELRERE EEHH EXCHE BAl  FEEEK
Direct subsidiary
EEMELH
China Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
REEERDER A B8 #11,0007T REER
Indirect subsidiaries
BEREAR
Airlane Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
HEERBRAA G BT NXEE
Barmax Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
BEERERAF BB BT NEEE
Botex Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100  Property trading
REERAERATA 0 BT NEEE
Canton Risen Financial Leasing Co., PRC RMB$500,000,000 100 Financial leasing
Ltd (Note)
ERERMBEEEERAF (ME) A K. #500,000,0007C 100 ®EHEE
Centon Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100  Property trading
BRERERAF Bt BB NEEE
Charland Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
HEREARAT 0 BT NXEE
China Alliance Industries Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
EREXAERAA B8 BT NEEE
China Industrial Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
PEIXERARLA B BB RERR
China Select Small Hotel Union Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 100 Hotel management
Limited
BERBEHEERAA B 75 %12,000,0007T 100 JEEER
CIH Finance Investments Holdings Hong Kong HK$4 100 Financial Investment
Limited
PEAXSRREERE QR B B4 TRIRE
CIH Leasing Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100  Financial leasing
REEEEERR A B BT 100 REME
CIH Leasing Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Financial leasing
hEEXHEEREARLA BB BT 100 REME
Cyro Holdings Limited British Virgin US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong
RBROES /B E RERR
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Place of
incorporation or
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

36. TEMBE AT (&)

Issued and fully
paid ordinary

registration/ share capital/ Percentage
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held Principal activity
BETR
BRI HBREBR
Hifh,/ B&x/ =2
WELRER EEMHY EAXCHE Btk FEEH
Expert Target Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
BREERBERATA B8 BT NEEE
Greenswood Property Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100  Property investment
EMYEERAF Bt BB NERE
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco PRC RMB$910,000,000 80  Industrial parks
Construction Co., Ltd (Note)
BRPEFMERERAA (M) B A K #910,000,0007T 80 EXE
Guangdong Yibaijian Comprehensive ~ PRC RMB$10,000,000 70 Comprehensive elderly
Health Technology Ltd (Note) care services
J%Eﬁffé)ﬁﬁ@@ﬂ&ﬁﬁwﬂ hE A K #10,000,0007C 70 EBEHARE
i
Guilin Plaza Hotel (Note) PRC US$10,400,000 100 Hotel operations
ERBRAE (F5) h 10,400,000% 7 BEgR
Jofra Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
E5 71,0007 REER
Foshan City Nanhai Jia Shun Timber ~ PRC HK$39,800,000 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited* (Note) trading
of medium density
fibreboards
BT EAERAREERAR I 7 %:39,800,0007T HEMBEERERE
(M) BHR
Foshan City Nanhai Kang Sheng PRC HK$81,000,000 100 Wood processing
Timber Company Limited* (Note)
FTEEREAERR A g 781,000,000 KA RE
(B aE)
Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage PRC RMB$30,000,000 100 Property investment
Investments Holdings Limited*
(Note)
FLTEREERERRAR ()  HE AR %30,000,0007 NERE
Foshan Zhong Chuang Property PRC RMB$5,000,000 42 Property management
Service Company Limited (Note)
BLTRANERBERAA (HE) =& AR 5,000,000 42 PEREE
Langmax Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100  Property trading
BEREBRDA 0 BT NEXER
Lina Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
BEFRAERAA B0 BT NEEE
Metropolitan Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
BHERBRAA B8 BT NEEE
Rich Asset Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
BNRERAERAA BB BT NEER
Rich Horn Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100  Property trading
W BERAERAA EA BT NEXER
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

37.

Place of
incorporation or
registration/

36.

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

FTEMB AR (&)

Percentage

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held Principal activity
BETR

B AL HBREBR

Rt/ B&/ t=2)
WELRER EEMHY EXCEE Batkk FEEH
Senicon Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
HAREBRRA 6 BT NEEE
Sabrina Limited British Virgin USS$1 100 Investment holding

Islands/Hong Kong

ERRUEE/BE E RERR
Sino Sense Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
ERERAERAA 0 BT NEEE
Southern Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Investment holding and

property investment
BRERRA Bt 7 %10,0007T REZREMERE
Trener Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
FHREBRRA EB BT NXEE
Universal Talent Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 Property trading
FRERBRAA BB BT NEEE
Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) PRC RMB$8,000,000 100 Investment holding
Investments Company Limited
(Note)

@R (ORI REBRAF h AR #8,000,0007 100 REZK

()

Note: Wholly foreign owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or

assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

37.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current year presentation.

For identification propose only
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. A QA B Mk R L GEE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z2®”E 23,607 23,607
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NGIE S 1,278,730 736,838
Deposits and other receivables e R E AR EIE - 224
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMRITER 63,963 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 26,283 798
1,368,976 737,860
Current liabilities nREBE
Bank loan RITER 546,826 -
Other payables H b JE T 5RI8 80,061 79,124
626,887 79,124
Net current assets REBEETFEH 742,089 658,736
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBER 765,696 682,343
Capital and reserves N
Share capital X 171,233 171,233
Reserves i 368,877 390,018
Equity attributable to owners of AR
the Company 540,110 561,251
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible notes BEE3 135,586 121,092
Loan from immediate holding company BEEERARIZE 90,000 -
225,586 121,092
765,696 682,343

RRARBBRARER-T—-NF=A
“tTtLHEEESHENBETR I

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March

2018 and are signed on its behalf by: AUTESREESE:
HE XIANGMING LIN PINGWU
4] 1] BA MER
Director % Director £ %
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. A QA B Mk R L GEE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continuead) (&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AATREZEE
Convertible
Share note equity Accumulated
Premium reserve losses Total
ARBREE
% 17 )% 8 EEREE RiTEE mat
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"E—A—H 725,199 34,700 (350,703) 409,196
Loss for the year rEEER - - (19,178) (19,178)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE
1 January 2017 +tZA=+-HBEK
—E—-t%—-H-—H 725,199 34,700 (369,881) 390,018
Loss for the year REFERE - - (21,141) (21,141)
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—t&
+=ZBA=+-—H 725,199 34,700 (391,022) 368,877
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39. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and is not attributable but may be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares
or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchases
of shares.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents general reserve and
enterprise expansion fund which are set up by
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC by
way of appropriation from the profit after taxation in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC. The rate of appropriation of the general reserve
and enterprise expansion fund is subject to the decision
of the Board of Directors of the PRC subsidiaries, but
the minimum appropriation rate for the general reserve
is 10% of the profit after taxation for each year, until
when the accumulated balance reaches 50% of the
total registered capital of the subsidiary. Pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, if approvals
are obtained from the relevant government authorities,
the general reserve can be used to set off accumulated
losses or to increase the capital, and the enterprise
expansion fund can be used to increase the capital.

ok BV 255 A B

Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements
BHE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

39. B ZMEREMN

(i)

(ii)

iy gEEAZBASREEZ
ERBIRODAEEZSE ZF
BETTOIK EARBABAZ
T (B LBUR AR AHABUR AL
A RARBBRREITZ R
TR ©

EEDR

o

EAERERERFREBESREFRE
RES THEPEARKANE
(THR B ) B B 2 5 2 I B A =)
KEtE R RIETEBRED &
ERRE - BRI AT B R
AMKRY - EEEERERERE
2B EEHPENE AR
RS RRZEEEETE  HERE
Ee 2 BB X BEFRHK
BEN10% BEERBEEREDZ
MBARKREERRZEEIME
R60% /3 1E < AR BB BDE S I
ERRE ERGABEBNE BRI
e A 2 & A RE TR 78 R AT
BHEMER MEXRERESA
A AEEMER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

39. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Hotel property revaluation reserve

Hotel property are revalued annually based on
independent professional valuations on an open market
value basis. Changes in the values of hotel property are
dealt with as movement in the hotel property revaluation
reserve. If the reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation
deficit, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit or
loss for the year.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries of the Group whose
reporting currency is not Hong Kong dollars. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
of foreign currencies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Convertible note equity reserve

Convertible note equity reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy for convertible notes set out in Note
3 to the consolidation financial statements.

CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 5 Jit 45 fR 2 5]
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30. EZHERBEWN (&)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

BIEMREMRERE

BIEMESFHREAARMES
BET 2B BEEMGEER B
MEBEEENBENEEMFH
IR E B R TR o fi 70 (8 Bl E 24
FHBNEABMmERRE  AIE
BREZZEABRERTOR-

BE 51

EXREREMERBREAEE
ASER T 25808 5N F R A B #
WERAEEZELZ8E - ZHER
IBAR A WIS MR I 38 51 2 S
SRR EREE -

TRBRREEREE

ABRBREREmFEEARAN
BT BRBRESKRITERDS
2 BE  TIRELG A MBS HRKH
deEVI e M T AR AT RKRES
FRER A E) & ot R TR



BRGS0

Five Years Financial Summary

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=% CZE-NF ZT-hF ZT—RF ZZT—t#%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BEF T BET T
RESULTS A
Continuing operations BERE 2
Revenue e 29,616 32,448 39,275 24,554 29,846
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERFN,/ (FR) (1) 81,038 5,773 (2,703) 27,630
Discontinued operations BRFEEER
loss for the year AEEEE (1,408) - - (1,628) -
Profit/(loss) for the year AFEERDAEERA
attributable to owners BT (ER) (1,419) 81,038 5,773 (4,331) 31,266
Earnings/(loss) per share SRAEF/ (FHB)
From continuing and BELER
discontinued operations BRIEE 2 %%
(HKE T HKE T HK& T (HKE T HK7& 7t
Basic AR 0.12centfl)  6.22 centsfll  0.34 centsfll 0.25 centfll)  1.83 centsfll
(HKE T HK% T HK& T (HKE T HKi& 1t
Diluted =3 0.12cent)  6.22centsfll  0.34 centsfll 0.25 centfl) ~ 1.83 centsfll
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+-HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F ZE-WmE ZT-hF ZT—RF ZE2—t%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFIT BB T BET T BET R
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XZEREE
Total assets EEBE 715,412 1,458,734 1,352,241 1,316,578 2,277,412
Total liabilities BREBE (123,354) (463,152) (377,822) (385,291)  (1,099,553)
Non-controlling interests TR = - - - - (157,625)
Equity contributable to ADRHER ANEGERS
owners 592,058 995,582 974,419 931,287 1,020,234
* The result for each of the years 2013-2015 have not been represented  * ZEZEThFSFEBNVERD

for the discontinued operation.

BRI EEBETED -
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Particulars of Major Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December W _-_Z—+&H&+ - A=+—H AEEHEEH

2017 are as follows: ZEBYEERFROT
Total gross
Effective Category floor area on Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type completion Stage of completion
ERES TR 2 B
2B/t Bk HEEHR ki) BEZHE ERBR  THEH
(s.m.)
(FAXK)
Hotel property
BEYFE
Guilin Plaza, 20 Li Jiang Lu 100 Medium Hotel 29,746 Existing N/A
Guilin, Guangxi, The PRC.
H B R 7 AT BT K 100 #H iy 29746  HE @R
205 EME X B R
Properties
VES
Unit No. 1, 14 & 15 on 5th Floor, 100 Medium Commercial 429 Existing N/A
Wing On Plaza,
No. 62 Mody Road,
Kowloon.
Bk 100 HH GES 429  BAE NEm
B3 186257
KR E5HE
1 14R15%

1 8 O CHINA INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED o 5 88 3 5 Jit 45 fR 2 5]
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Name/Location

LYt

Effective Category
% held of lease
EBREE
Btk HEER

Type

<Rl

Total gross
floor area on
completion
TREZ
BEZHR
(s.m.)

(FHK)

Particulars of Major Properties

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
B
TEREH

Properties (Continued)

EXED)

12th to 13th Floor of
Block A, Phase 1
Guangdong - Hong Kong
Finance & Technology Park
Guicheng Street,

Nanhai District

Foshan City,

Guangdong Province
The PRC

mEERE

Il TR g R
BT E £ RHR6
BECRBREIE
12-1318

Investment properties

RENF

17th Floor

SingHo Finance Building,

Nos. 166/168 Gloucester Road,
Hong Kong.

Bk

ELE

166/168%%

ENHBAEITE

100 Medium

100

100 Medium

100 #H

Commercial

GRS

Commercial

[EES

3,048

3,048

112

112

Existing

RE

Existing

RE

N/A

TEm

N/A
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Particulars of Major Properties

Effective Category
Name/Location % held of lease Type
ERER
2B/t BAak  HEER E<Fi]

Total gross
floor area on
completion
TREZ
BEZHR
(s.m.)

(FH%)

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
A
TEREH

Investment properties (Continued)

REW* (8)

1st to 11th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial
Block A, Phase 1

Guangdong - Hong Kong

Finance & Technology Park

Guicheng Street,

Nanhai District

Foshan City,

Guangdong Province

The PRC

mEERE 100 GES
IR g R

BT E £ R ER6

BECRBREIE

11148
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15,818

15,818

Existing

RE

N/A

TEm



Name/Location

LYt

Effective Category
% held of lease
EBREE
Btk HEER

Type

<Rl

Total gross
floor area on
completion
TREZ
BEZHR
(s.m.)

(FHK)

Particulars of Major Properties

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
B
TEREH

Properties held for sale

HENF

Levels 5, 7, 9, 12-14, 17, 20-22
of Block A and all shopping
spaces in the podium under Block
B & C of Shantou Commercial Plaza
at the junction of Jinsha Road East
and Huashan Road,

Shantou Special Economic Zone,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC.

FEERE

R ER 2

Y REE

ZEIERR
WEE R B R R EAR
5+7-9+12-14 17 - 20-2212
PAK B JCFHE

TazeBEsEE

100 Medium

100 A

Commercial/
Residential

BE/EE

11,017

11,017

Existing

RE

N/A

TEm
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Particulars of Major Properties

Effective Category
Name/Location % held of lease Type
ERER
2B/ BAak  HEER ga

Total gross
floor area on
completion
TREZ
BEZHR
(s.m.)

(FHK)

Stage

ERER

Expected year
of completion
B
TEREH

6th, 8th and 11th, 100 Long Commercial/
Floors of Building A, Office
International Commerce Building,

Banzhang Lake, South Riverside,

Huizhou City,

Guangdong Province,

The PRC.

mEERE

BMm 100 R#H mE/
R B¥E
HHE

BEAE

BEE10/E A 2

AFE6 -8R 1118
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848

848

Existing

RE

N/A

TER
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